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Software licenses52.7%

Service & Hardware 4.6%

Recurring revenues 42.7%

Europe (without Germany) 32%

Americas 25%

Asia/Pacific 9%

Rest of World 1%

Germany33% 

Design

Build 21%

Manage

7%

70%

2%

Media & Entertainment

At a glance

REVENUES BY SEGMENTS IN %

REVENUES BY TYPE IN %

REVENUES BY REGIONS IN %
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NEMETSCHEK GROUP

in EUR million Dec. 31, 2015

Revenues 285.3 218.5 185.9 175.1 164.0

EBITDA 69.5 56.8 46.3 40.9 39.3

24.4% 26.0% 24.9% 23.4% 23.9%

EBIT 52.7 46.5 35.7 29.9 29.1

18.5% 21.3% 19.2% 17.1% 17.7%

Net income (group shares) 35.9 31.5 24.0 19.5 20.8

0.93 0.82 0.62 0.51 0.54

Net income (group shares) before 
depreciation of purchase price allocation 42.8 35.3 29.7 25.3 27.1

1.11 0.92 0.77 0.66 0.70

65.1 44.2 40.2 36.5 37.1

23.7 – 35.2 18.7 29.8 31.5

Net liquidity/net debt 3.3 – 3.0 48.6 44.3 28.8

Balance sheet total 379.5 291.7 178.5 159.9 162.4

Equity ratio 44.0% 46.8% 66.2% 66.8% 63.9%

Headcount as of balance sheet date 1,754 1,559 1,356 1,229 1,173

Closing price (Xetra) in €* 46.03 20.90 12.58 8.30 6.45





The Nemetschek Group is an innovative and internationally leading software 

group in the AEC industry. It comprises 12 strong brands which are among 

the best in their respective product sectors. The joint success is based on a 

philosophy, a vision, which can be easily described with a single word: “Open”. 

Open to new things in a global world – with interdisciplinary collaboration across 

borders and open interfaces. And with a clear commitment to “Open BIM”, a 

standard that enables seamless and smooth collaboration of all those involved 

in the building process. This is the foundation of a global network of companies 

with unparalleled top-of-the-line products. That’s what the Nemetschek Group 

stands for: “The Heart of Open BIM”.

Eco House 3.0, Castéllon, Spain

Designer: NOEM

Image: Meritxell Arjalaguer
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12 strong brands

FIRST-CLASS SOLUTIONS

With its 12 brands, the Nemetschek Group offers a wide range of graphical, analytical and commercial 

software solutions which play a major role in all phases and thus in the entire life cycle of buildings –  

from building design and visualization all the way to the actual construction process and building 

 management and renovation. 

44



-

tee construction quality. These solutions optimize the entire design, construction and management 

process for buildings – in Germany, in Europe, all over the world. Our brands win awards worldwide as 

best-of-breed solutions which make it possible for us to address the target groups that are relevant to 

us in a perfectly appropriate manner.
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Network  
of Industry Leaders 

INDEPENDENT AND SUCCESSFUL BRANDS

operating independently in the corresponding market. The entrepreneurial freedom 

of each of our brands to recognize trends at an early stage and consistently open up 

 

and that is the philosophy of "Being open". Being open to the requirements and 

 

customer proximity and 100 percent innovation. This puts us in a position to 

Our 12 brands are the key to the Nemetschek Group’s long-term success and  

innovation leadership.
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WE KEEP ON GROWING

competition in bidding processes. The founders of potential acquisitions see an 

-
ments and continuously expand our solution portfolio organically and by means of 
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Think and Act Openly
Open for new things – for us this begins with listening and looking closely. How 

are  customer requirements and markets developing, where are trends and inno-

vations emerging? We don’t just want to recognize change but also understand 

it, and even better, predict it and actively shape it. We think and act openly. On 

the basis of this motto, we develop software solutions that are ahead of their 

time – worldwide, in various  disciplines, via various stages and throughout all 

building life cycles.
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Think and Act Openly

WHEN SOFTWARE IS CREATED ON THE BASIS OF CUSTOMER  
REQUIREMENTS AND INNOVATIVE SPIRIT

1010



 

With solutions from one group – the Nemetschek Group – it is possible to cover  
the entire building process. 

innovative spirit of our Group.
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Open World 
The Nemetschek Group pursues a global growth strategy. More than ever,  

we have adopted an international alignment which allows us to enter new 

countries, new  cultures and new markets. In an open world, we also want  

to grow by means of  cooperations and by buying new brands that suit our 

strategy.
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Open World

-

 
of their connection. 

The brands remain the individual face presented to the customer. With their unique 

are strongly positioned as members of an international corporate group. The indivi-

1414



easier for us. The acquired companies are able to continue serving their existing 

 

-
sed recognition of Nemetschek as a Group in the international AEC market. We are 

-
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Open for Collaboration
Using our software, we create a foundation for optimum and seamless colla-

boration among all the project stakeholders in the building process. Open  

interfaces, effective communication and documentation, clear visualization,  

design, and consistent quality assurance enable seamless collaboration among 

all of the cooperating professional groups – across borders and time zones.
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Open for Collaboration

COLLABORATION – A DIGITAL DIALOG

 
-

building contractor and initiator to creative architects and designers to highly special-

dual  communication relationships and is correspondingly complex and high-main-

interfaces are lacking.
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THE NEMETSCHEK GROUP RELIES ON DIGITALIZATION  
FOR THE ANSWER 

-

 

communication and project documentation. We enable valid quality assurance and 
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The Heart of Open BIM
The term that is revolutionizing our industry and modern building processes is 

“Open BIM” – Open Building Information Modeling. Open BIM enables the di-

gital, seamless exchange of all building-relevant information in the construction 

process. It ensures that all of the Nemetschek Group’s software solutions can 

collaborate openly and smoothly – among themselves as well as with software 

from competitors.

Open BIM is the future we are already living today. We are proud that we, as 

an incubator and innovator, and as a creative force and partner to third parties, 

have been successfully establishing this technology in the industry for years.  

In a nutshell: We are “the Heart of Open BIM”.

2121



The Heart of Open BIM

-
-

managing of building projects.

-
cept of a database-driven platform for all those involved in the construction process in 

provider of globally recognized BIM solutions and trusts completely in Open BIM. We 
 

of the cross-brand corporate strategy in the Nemetschek Group. Open BIM ensures 
 

 

-

other project partners are using.
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CLEAR COMMUNICATION – EFFICIENT QUALITY MANAGEMENT

-

Solibri delivers one-of-a-kind tools for quality assurance and quality control for 
 

security and transparency.

5D

Three-dimensional design that accounts for the timeline and all cost implications.

This high performance and the breadth and depth of the offering is unique in the 

industry.

2323



Worldwide
As a pioneer of Building Information Modeling (BIM) and the initiator of the  

Open BIM Initiative, we stand for an open approach as a basis for cooperation 

that is independent of software maker. Our aim is to maximize quality and 

globe. Worldwide.
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Denver International Airport, Denver, USA
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AMERICAS

Brazil 
Canada
Mexico

USA

Building occurs worldwide. Therefore, the Nemetschek Group operates 

important markets in the world – with 12 strong brands and more than  

50 sites worldwide.

With 2.1 million registered users in 142 countries, today we are among 

the most successful software providers worldwide for the AEC  

(Architecture, Engineering, Construction) industry that have long  

since overcome all national borders.

 12 BRANDS 
 1 PHILOSOPHY
 2,1 M USERS
 50 LOCATIONS
 142 COUNTRIES

Worldwide
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WESTERN AND SOUTHERN EUROPE

Austria
Belgium
France
Germany
Great Britain
Italy
Netherlands
Spain

NORTHERN AND EASTERN EUROPE

Czech Republic
Finland
Hungary

Russia
Slovakia

ASIA

China
Japan
Singapore
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JuneMay

January

October

February

September

Highlights 2015

conclusion on the trade fair BAU 2015

GRAPHISOFT acquires Cigraph 

Distribution Unit in Italy

 

ARCHICAD 19 – “Faster Than Ever”

 of the 2015 User Contest

to simplify document management and 

speed up project communication

Nemetschek Group conducts stock split successfully
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July

March

November

April

December

August

MAXON announces the opening of its

®

Bluebeam eXtreme Conference focuses 

on innovation through extensionGRAPHISOFT signs major Brazil client

Global VDC and GRAPHISOFT enter 

into strategic partnership

Nemetschek acquires leading 

BIM specialist Solibri

Bluebeam presents Studio Prime solution

Rebranding of the Nemetschek brands 

successfully implemented

SCIA announces the release of SCIA 

2929



House Harjannetie 44, Helsinki, Finland

Architects: Hannunkari & Mäkipaja Architects 

Image: Mikael Linden
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“GRAPHISOFT has had an exceptionally 

successful year in 2015. We have further 

strengthened our leading position both 

in our traditional markets in Europe and 

especially in DACH as well as in our 

overseas markets, Japan in particular. 

line gave us great leverage for the growth 

of our ARCHICAD business in large 

as well.”

Viktor Várkonyi, GRAPHISOFT

Segment:

Design

Company size:

423 employees

Locations:

Budapest, Beijing, Boston, Hong Kong, London, 

Mexico City, Moscow, Munich, São Paulo, 

Singapore, Tokyo, Venice

Solutions:

ARCHICAD
BIMcloud
BIMx

Awards and References:

BIM Product of the Year 

Bronze Stevie® Award 

Best of Show Awards at AIA 2015 

Virtual Building
GRAPHISOFT is a global leader in architectural 3D 

BIM software. GRAPHISOFT ignited the BIM revolution 

for architects. GRAPHISOFT’s mission is to bring BIM 

into common practice for the design and realization of 

on through innovative IT solutions. Founded in 1984 in 

Budapest, Hungary, GRAPHISOFT has been a part of 

the Nemetschek Group since its acquisition in 2007.

www.graphisoft.com
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To our Shareholders

Patrik Heider, 
Spokesman of the Executive Board and CFOO
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beyond.

DIGITALIZATION, OPEN BIM AND FIVE-DIMENSIONAL BUILDING ARE THE FUTURE

 

 

 

and, thanks to their customer orientation, ensure that companies have the opportunity to make optimum use of 

LETTER TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
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SUSTAINABLE DIVIDEND POLICY

 

 

 

 

annual general meeting.

Dear shareholders,  

 

 

 

the Group. This structure has proven itself and is one of our success factors.
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OPTIMISTIC OUTLOOK FOR 2016

 

our customers.

revenue  

in the 

EBITDA

 

 

shareholders, again for the trust placed in us and your loyalty. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

LETTER TO THE SHAREHOLDERS



The Executive Board

continu ously strive to make the best possible solutions available to 

our customers so that they can optimally manage challenges in the 

PATRIK HEIDER
SPOKESMAN OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD AND 

CFOO OF NEMETSCHEK AG

branding, the Nemetschek Group is spreading its brand image as the 

SEAN FLAHERTY
EXECUTIVE BOARD OF NEMETSCHEK AG AND

CEO OF VECTORWORKS, INC. 

 to introduce 

VIKTOR VÁRKONYI
EXECUTIVE BOARD OF NEMETSCHEK AG AND

CEO OF GRAPHISOFT SE

3838



f. l. t. r. Viktor Várkonyi, Patrik Heider, Sean Flaherty

3939

THE EXECUTIVE BOARD



“Allplan supports all stakeholders with 

draft to building construction and operation. 

for more than 30 years it has been the core 

of our value proposition.”

Michael Koid, Allplan

Segments:

Design, Build, Manage

Company size:

363 employees

Locations:

Munich, Berlin, Bratislava, Graz, Madrid, 
Paris, Prague, Salzburg, Vienna, Zurich etc.

Solutions:

Allplan Architecture
Allplan Engineering
Allplan Allfa
bim+

Awards and References:

“Architect’s Darling” 2012 and 2014

ALLPLAN – BIM Right 
from the Start 
Allplan is a leading European provider of Building 
Information Modeling (BIM) solutions for architects, 
civil engineers, the construction industry, and facility 
management. As a subsidiary of the Nemetschek 
Group in Munich, Allplan offers its customers inno-
vative tools for designing and completing sophisti-
cated architectural and civil engineering projects. 
The solutions are in use in 20 languages with more 
than 190,000 users. As a member of the Open BIM 
Initiative, Allplan supports the IFC Standard. In this 
way, Allplan contributes to making the holistic design, 
construction and management of buildings possible. 

www.allplan.com

Image: Andreas Lechtape
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MEETINGS AND TOPICS OF FOCUS

 

 

 

 

 

 

Supervisory board’s report on the  
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| | |

| | |

| | |  

resolutions to the annual general meeting

| | |  

| | |

| | |

| | |   Group planning, revenue planning, earning planning and investment planning for 2015

| | |   Implementation and further action for the Nemetschek Group rebranding

| | |

| | |

| | |

| | |

| | |

| | |

| | |

| | |   Internal control and early stage risk detection systems, audit and compliance report

| | |

| | |

| | |

COMPOSITION OF EXECUTIVE BOARD AND SUPERVISORY BOARD

members.

REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
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AUDIT OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 

 

 

 

 

 

DIVIDEND
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CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
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LOOKING BACK AT THE YEAR 2015

NEMETSCHEK SHARES WITH CONTINUED DYNAMIC DEVELOPMENT

 

 

PRICE DEVELOPMENT OF NEMETSCHEK SHARES IN THE YEAR 2015 COMPARED TO DAX AND TECDAX (INDEXED)

TECDAX RANKING

 

47 € 

44 € 

41 € 

38 € 

35 € 

32 € 

29 € 

23 € 

26 € 

20 € 
Jan 15 Apr 15 Jun 15 Aug 15 Oct 15 Dec 15

 Nemetschek     DAX     TecDAX

Increase in share 

 

in 2015 
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Great trust placed in  

supervisory board

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING APPROVED ALL ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

STOCK SPLIT SUCCESSFULLY COMPLETED

 

Nemetschek share held at no further charge. Given that the overall value remained the same, the estimated price 

DIVIDEND PAYMENT OF EUR 0.40 PER SHARE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014

 

 

 

CONVERSION OF THE COMPANY INTO AN SE

At the 2015 annual general meeting, the shareholders also approved the conversion of Nemetschek AG into a 

 

remain in Munich, Germany.

NEMETSCHEK ON THE CAPITAL MARKET
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SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE UNCHANGED

structure comprising private and institutional investors in Germany and abroad.

SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE*

COMMUNICATION WITH THE CAPITAL MARKET

public. An ongoing and timely dialog serves to increase transparency and reinforce trust in the Nemetschek Group.

KEY FIGURES ON SHARES

2015 2014*

Earnings per share in € 0.93 0.82

High in € 46.03 21.25

Low in € 20.52 12.60

Closing price in € 46.03 20.90

Price/earnings ratio 49.49 25.57

Market capitalization in € million 1,772.16 804.65

Average number of shares traded per day (Xetra) 69,840 44,145

Average number of outstanding shares 38,500,000 38,500,000

 

Prof. Georg Nemetschek5.2 %

Nemetschek Vermögens-
verwaltungs GmbH & Co. KG48.4 %Free float 46.4 %

* Direct shareholdings as of December 31, 2015

all stakeholders
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Corporate Governance Report

 

shareholders, business partners, employees and the general public. At the same time, these principles are important 

LEADERSHIP STRUCTURE AND COMPANY STRUCTURE

and the supervisory board. 

EXECUTIVE BOARD

relevant topics relating to business development, company planning, strategic alignment, the opportunity and risk 

SUPERVISORY BOARD

tions made on the basis of appropriate information.

The supervisory board is elected by the annual general meeting. The election of the supervisory board conforms to 

 

the supervisory board presents the activities of the supervisory board every year in his report to the shareholders as 

NEMETSCHEK ON THE CAPITAL MARKET / CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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REMUNERATION OF EXECUTIVE BOARD AND SUPERVISORY BOARD

 

OPPORTUNITY AND RISK MANAGEMENT AND COMPLIANCE

Weighing opportunities and risks continuously and responsibly is one of the principles of responsible company lea

system of the Nemetschek Group.

 

 

and reactions to them that are correct and appropriate.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING AND YEAR-END AUDIT

 

 

 

 

SHAREHOLDERS AND THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

general meeting and the corresponding documents and information are made available on the Nemetschek Group 

TRANSPARENCY AND COMMUNICATION

 

 

DIRECTORS’ DEALINGS, VOTING RIGHTS AND STOCK OPTION SCHEME

 

Nemetschek AG does not have a stock option scheme at the present time.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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DECLARATION OF CONFORMITY IN ACCORDANCE WITH § 161 OF THE GERMAN 
STOCK CORPORATION ACT (AKTG) DATED MARCH 2016

 

| | |

responsibility of the members of the supervisory board.

| | |

pany, Nemetschek AG does not offer any appropriate standards of comparison for either upper management 

 

 

remuneration decisions.

 

 

incentive plans is limited, this also applies for the total remuneration to be achieved.

appropriate caps are to be agreed upon.

| | |
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| | |

the formation of such committees are all performed by the supervisory board of Nemetschek AG.

| | |

 

development.

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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Denver International Airport, 

Denver, USA, 

Visualization: Gensler

“At Bluebeam, our goal is to provide customers 

way they work. We enable teams in the most 

document-intensive industries to seamlessly 

access, manage, annotate, share and store 

project documents when and how they need. 

And we believe our customers should have 

no limits to collaboration.” 

Richard Lee, Bluebeam

Segment:

Build

Company size:

217 employees

Locations:

Pasadena, Chicago, Kista, Manchester (USA), San Diego

Solutions:

Bluebeam Revu
Bluebeam Vu
Bluebeam Studio

Awards and References:

“2015 Tabby Award“, “Gold 2015 Hermes
Creative Award“, “Bronze Telly Award“, three 
times listed on “Deloitte Technology Fast 500“

PDF Solutions to Work 
without Limits 
Bluebeam creates solutions for technical pro-
fessionals. Bluebeam Software designs PDF- 

 enable the most document-intensive industries 
in the world to go paperless, shorten schedules, 
reduce costs and improve project communication. 
Bluebeam was founded in 2002 in Pasadena, 
 California, USA and became a part of Nemetschek 
Group in 2014.

www.bluebeam.com
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GROUP MANAGEMENT REPORT
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commercial solutions

1 BASIC INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

1.1 BUSINESS MODEL OF THE GROUP

LEGAL STRUCTURE

 

 

 

 

 

BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

 

Group management report 
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BUSINESS SEGMENTS

 

DESIGN

DESIGN

ARCHITECTURE  |  ENGINEERING  |  CONSTRUCTION (AEC)

BUILD MANAGE
MEDIA & 

ENTERTAINMENT

BASIC INFORMATION ON THE GROUP
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Allplan

 

 

Graphisoft

 

Vectorworks

 

 

 

Scia

Data Design System (DDS),
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measures

Frilo Software

Precast Software Engineering

 

 

BUILD 

Nevaris Bausoftware

 

 

  

 

BASIC INFORMATION ON THE GROUP
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Bluebeam Software

Solibri Oy

 

 

MANAGE

 

Crem Solutions 
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MEDIA & ENTERTAINMENT

 

Maxon Computer 

 

 

LOCATIONS

 

SIGNIFICANT SALES MARKETS AND COMPETITIVE POSITION

WESTERN AND 
SOUTHERN EUROPE

Austria
Belgium
France

Germany
Great Britain

Italy
Netherlands

Spain
Switzerland

AMERICAS

Brazil
Canada
Mexico
USA

ASIA

China
Japan
Singapore

NORTHERN AND 
EASTERN EUROPE

Czech Republic
Finland
Hungary
Norway
Russia
Slovakia
Sweden

BASIC INFORMATION ON THE GROUP
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“When establishing Solibri, we had two 

ambitious goals in mind. Firstly, we wanted 

to develop a universal software for evaluating 

and analyzing BIM models, a software which 

and weaknesses in building plans. Secondly, 

and equally important, was the intention to 

assurance throughout the process.”

Heikki Kulusjärvi, Solibri

Segment:

Design

Company size:

29 employees

Locations:

Helsinki, Madrid, Newbury, Scottsdale

Solutions:

Solibri Model Checker 
Solibri Model Viewer
Solibri IFC Optimize

Quality Checking in all Stages 
of the Building Process
Solibri was founded in 1999, focusing upon the 
construction industry from the beginning. The funda-
mental challenges of money and material waste could 
be solved with Solibri’s new ideas. From this thinking 
came out-of-the-box software to check and analyze 
construction designs. Solibri Model Checker (SMC) 
X-rays Building Information Models – offering 3D visua-
lization and walk-in functionality to reveal potential 

in Helsinki, continues to work with architects and 
construction companies to save time, money, and the 
environment.

www.solibri.com
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Nemetschek  

concentrates on the 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CORPORATE MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL
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Nemetschek follows a 

1.3 OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGY

 

INTERNATIONALIZATION – WORLDWIDE DISTRIBUTION

INNOVATIONS – ADDRESSING TECHNOLOGICAL TRENDS

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BASIC INFORMATION ON THE GROUP
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Nemetschek leaves 

ACQUISITIONS
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Women play an 

 

positions

1.4 EMPLOYEES

 

 

PERSONNEL STRUCTURE

 

 

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

 

Research & Development

Administration

Sales, Marketing,
Service & Hotline43%

13%

44%

BASIC INFORMATION ON THE GROUP
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the Nemetschek 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Design

Allplan 2016

Archicad 19

 

Vectorworks 2016 release can 
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Sustainable economic 

principles are the 

Scia Engineer

 

Build

 

 

Nevaris

Nevaris BIM, Nevaris Build  

 Nevaris Finance 

Bluebeam Revu

Bluebeam Studio Prime

Manage iX-Haus  

 

Media & Entertainment,

solution Cinema 4D.

1.6 SUSTAINABLE AND RESPONSIBLE BEHAVIOR

ENVIRONMENT*

 

 

BASIC INFORMATION ON THE GROUP
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construction can be 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EMPLOYEES AND WORKING ENVIRONMENT
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SOCIETY

 

 

BASIC INFORMATION ON THE GROUP
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Barco’s “One Campus”, Kortrijk, Belgium
Engineering Offi ce: Establis

“Our product needs to continuously cope with 
new provisions and modifi ed standards. We have 
adapted our software to allow us to communicate 
changes to the users in a fast and uncomplicated 
manner. In addition, we have designed our appli-
cations to enable cloud-based work.”

Dr.-Ing. Hans Stegmüller, FRILO Software

Segment:

Design

Company size:

41 employees

Locations:

Stuttgart, Dresden

Solutions:

GEO The FRILO Building Model
PLT Plates by Finite Elements
DLT Continuous Beam for all Materials
DA Programs for Roof Constructions
MW Programs for Masonry Design
HO  Programs for Timber Constructions
Toolbox  Simple verifi cations for everyday use

Effi cient Software for 
Structural Engineering
FRILO Software is one of the leading providers of 
calculation programs for structural engineering tasks. 
With more than 100 stand-alone programs, FRILO 
covers a large range of practical structural engineering 
calculations. Intuitive operation, fast results and on-
going adaptation to current design codes are decisive 
criteria for success with customers. FRILO Software, 
headquartered in Stuttgart, Germany, was founded 
in 1978 and has been part of the Nemetschek Group 
since 1998. 

www.frilo.eu
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The economy of the 

to revive 

s international user 

 

2 ECONOMIC REPORT

OVERALL CONDITIONS*

OVERALL CONDITIONS

 

 

 

EUROZONE

USA

* Source: Jahresgutachten 2015/16 Sachverständigenrat & GTAI/Wirtschaftstrends
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JAPAN

EMERGING COUNTRIES

CONSTRUCTION SECTOR SITUATION**

EUROPEAN CONSTRUCTION ECONOMY

 

 

USA

 

SOUTH AMERICA, BRAZIL

 

 

** Source:  EuroConstruct Summary Report, GTAI/Bauwirtschaft

BASIC INFORMATION ON THE GROUP
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ASIA, JAPAN

 

OVERALL VIEW***

 

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE AND EVENTS WITH A SIGNIFICANT EFFECT ON 
BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

*** Sources:  Software & IT Services von Berenberg 04/2015,  
IT Software & Services von Kepler Chevreux 11/2015  
Stufenplan Digitales Planen und Bauen von BMVI
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SEGMENT EVENTS

In the Design

Graphisoft

Vectorworks

Allplan

Data Design System

Scia

Precast Software

BASIC INFORMATION ON THE GROUP
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Nevaris Bausoftware in the Build

 

  

Bluebeam Software,

,

 

In the Manage Crem Solutions

Media & Entertainment, Maxon

ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTMENTS

UNDER THE UMBRELLA OF THE NEMETSCHEK GROUP

 Bluebeam Software, Inc.,  

 

Solibri Oy, 
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Nemetschek is a 

 

International

 

GLASER -isb cad- Programmsysteme 

GmbH

the sale of the interests in  

UNDER THE UMBRELLA OF THE BRANDS

tor Cigraph

ESP Vision

Bluebeam AB in  

 

COOPERATION AND BUSINESS PARTNERSHIPS

 

BASIC INFORMATION ON THE GROUP
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DEVELOPMENT OF THE MATERIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

POSITIVE REVENUE DEVELOPMENT

All four quarters

group revenues

 

 

SEGMENT DEVELOPMENT

The Design

The Build

 

Manage

BASIC INFORMATION ON THE GROUP
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Media & Entertainment 

 

 

REVENUES BY SEGMENTS IN %

SUMMARY OF SEGMENT INDICATORS

REVENUE FROM SOFTWARE LICENSES AND RECURRING REVENUES

 

Design

Build 21%

Manage

7%

70%

2%

Media & Entertainment

In EUR million FY 2015 FY 2014

Design

Revenues 198.8 175.1

EBITDA 49.5 43.8

EBITDA margin

Build

Revenues 60.1 20.1

EBITDA 10.4 4.1

EBITDA margin

Manage

Revenues 6.3 5.3

EBITDA 1.3 1.1

EBITDA margin

Media & Entertainment

Revenues 20.1 18.0

EBITDA 8.2 7.8

EBITDA margin
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REVENUES BY TYPE IN %

INTERNATIONALIZATION

Software licenses52.7%

Service & Hardware 4.6%

Recurring revenues 42.7%

BASIC INFORMATION ON THE GROUP



86

 

 

 

 

 

 

REVENUES BY REGION IN %

EARNINGS SITUATION

GROWTH IN EARNINGS

 

Europe (without Germany) 32%

Americas 25%

Asia/Pacific 9%

Rest of World 1%

Germany33% 
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QUARTERLY DEVELOPMENT OF REVENUES AND EBITDA MARGIN
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22.2%

Q3 2015

23.8%

Q4 2015

25.3%

70.768.666.6 79.3

26.1%

BASIC INFORMATION ON THE GROUP
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SUMMARY OF GROUP INDICATORS

FINANCIAL POSITION

PRINCIPLES AND OBJECTIVES OF FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

LIQUIDITY ANALYSIS

 

 

In EUR million FY 2015 FY 2014

Revenues 285.3 218.5 +30.6%

thereof software licenses 150.4 105.0

thereof recurring revenues 121.7 101.0

EBITDA 69.5 56.8 +22.3%

EBITDA margin

EBIT 52.7 46.5 +13.3%

EBIT margin

Net income for the year (group shares) 35.9 31.5 +14.0%

Earnings per share in EUR 0.93 0.82

Adjusted net income before amortization of purchase price allocation 42.8 35.3

Adjusted earnings per share before amortization of purchase price allocation 1.11 0.92
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CASH FLOW DEVELOPMENT

CASH FLOW ANALYSIS IN EUR MILLION 

– 80 – 40– 60 – 20 0 20 40 60 80

Net liquidity

-3.0

3.3

44.2

65.1

Cash flow from operating activities

42.7

0.1

Cash flow from financing activities

56.8

69.5

EBITDA

-79.3

-41.4

Cash flow from investing activities

Fiscal year 2015 Fiscal year 2014

BASIC INFORMATION ON THE GROUP
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MANAGEMENT OF LIQUIDITY RISKS

INVESTMENT ANALYSIS

NET ASSETS
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BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 

SUMMARY OF THE BALANCE SHEET IN EUR MILLION

In EUR million FY 2015 FY 2014

Cash and cash equivalents 84.0 57.0

Goodwill 134.9 111.3

Equity 166.9 136.6

Balance sheet total 379.5 291.7 +30.1%

44.0 46.8

300

400

200

100

0

ASSETS SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

FY 2015

253.6

41.9

FY 2014

136.6

70.8

84.3

FY 2015

166.9

108.5

104.1

Cash and cash equivalents

Current assets (excl. cash)

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Equity

FY 2014

193.3

57.0

41.4

∑291.7 ∑291.7

∑379.5 ∑379.5

84.0

BASIC INFORMATION ON THE GROUP
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Nemetschek 

increases forecast for 

COMPARISON OF ACTUAL AND FORECAST BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

 

OVERALL PRESENTATION

 

 

 

 

In EUR million
Financial year  

2014
Forecast  
03/2015

Forecast adjustment 
10/2015* year 2015

Revenues 218.5 262 – 269 278 – 282 285.3

EBITDA 56.8 62 – 65 65 – 67 69.5
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3 OPPORTUNITY AND RISK REPORT

OPPORTUNITY AND RISK MANAGEMENT

 

 

ACCOUNTING-RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

 

BASIC INFORMATION ON THE GROUP  / OPPORTUNITY AND RISK MANAGEMENT 
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effect 

OPPORTUNITIES AND RISKS

RISK EVALUATION

 

 

RISK POTENTIAL PROBABILITY OF OCCURRENCE 

RISK POTENTIAL SEVERITY OF THE LOSS OR DAMAGE 

Level Probability of occurrence

Very low

Low

Medium

High

Very high

Level Potential severity

Very low

Low

Medium

High

Very high >EUR 4.5 million
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information technolo

MARKET RISKS

ECONOMIC RISKS (POLITICAL AND REGULATORY RISKS, SOCIAL CONFLICTS, INSTABILITIES, 
NATURAL DISASTERS) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

INDUSTRY SECTOR RISKS

 

 

OPPORTUNITY AND RISK MANAGEMENT 
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RISKS FROM THE COMPETITIVE ENVIRONMENT

Risk category Probability of occurrence Severity

Economic risks low low

Industry sector risks very low very low

Risks from the competitive environment medium low
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OPERATING RISKS

CORPORATE STRATEGY

 

SALES RISKS

 

 

MARKETING RISKS

 

PRODUCT RISKS

 

OPPORTUNITY AND RISK MANAGEMENT 
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PROJECT RISKS

TECHNOLOGY RISKS
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is a key factor for 

success

PROCESS RISKS

 

EMPLOYEES

 

 

ACQUISITION AND INTEGRATION RISKS

 

OPPORTUNITY AND RISK MANAGEMENT 
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LEGAL, TAX AND COMPLIANCE RISKS

TAX RISKS

 

 

COMPLIANCE AND GOVERNANCE RISKS

Risk category Probability of occurrence Severity

Corporate strategy very low very low

Sales risks medium very low

Marketing risks low low

Product risks medium very low

Project risks medium low

Technology risks low very low

Process risks low very low

Employees very low very low

Acquisition and integration risks very low very low
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LEGAL RISKS

 

 

FINANCIAL RISKS

 

 

CURRENCY RISKS

 

 

Risk category Probability of occurrence Severity

Tax risks very low very low

Compliance and governance risks very low very low

Legal risks medium low

OPPORTUNITY AND RISK MANAGEMENT 
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DEFAULT RISK AND RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

 

 

INTEREST RISK

SUMMARY ASSESSMENT OF THE GROUP’S OPPORTUNITY AND RISK SITUATION

Risk category Probability of occurrence Severity

Currency risks high low

Default risk and risk management high very low

Interest risk very low very low
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4 OTHER DISCLOSURES

4.1 REPORT ON ENTERPRISE CONTROLLING AND DECLARATION  
ON CORPORATE MANAGEMENT

DECLARATION OF CONFORMITY IN ACCORDANCE WITH § 161 AKTG

WORKING PRACTICES OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

SPECIFICATION ON THE PROMOTION OF THE PARTICIPATION OF WOMEN IN MANAGE-
MENT POSITIONS, ON THE EXECUTIVE BOARD AND ON THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

EXPLANATORY REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD ON THE DISCLOSURES UNDER 

(1) COMPOSITION OF THE SUBSCRIBED CAPITAL

(2) RESTRICTIONS RELATING TO THE VOTING RIGHTS OR TRANSFERABILITY OF SHARES

OPPORTUNITY AND RISK MANAGEMENT / OTHER DISCLOSURES
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(4) SHARES WITH SPECIAL RIGHTS GRANTING CONTROL

(5) TYPE OF VOTING RIGHT CONTROLS WHEN EMPLOYEES HOLD INTERESTS IN CAPITAL AND
DO NOT EXERCISE THEIR CONTROL RIGHTS DIRECTLY:

(6) LEGAL PROVISIONS AND STATUTES ON THE APPOINTMENT AND DISMISSAL OF MEMBERS
OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD AND ON AMENDMENTS TO THE STATUTES

(7) AUTHORIZATION OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD TO ISSUE OR REDEEM SHARES
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(8) SIGNIFICANT AGREEMENTS THAT ARE SUBJECT TO A CHANGE IN CONTROL AS A RESULT 
OF A TAKEOVER BID 

(9) COMPENSATION AGREEMENTS OF THE COMPANY WITH THE MEMBERS OF THE EXECUTIVE 
BOARD OR EMPLOYEES IN THE EVENT OF A TAKEOVER BID

OTHER DISCLOSURES



“With our strong commitment to R&D and innova-

tion, we promote the further development of BIM 

technology and make our structural engineering 

Hilde Sevens, SCIA

Segment:

Design

Company size:

87 employees

Locations:

Herk-de-Stad, Arnhem, Brno, Columbia, 

Solutions:

SCIA Engineer
SCIA Design Forms

Awards and References:

AECOM, ARCADIS bv, EGIS, Intertechne, 
HGA Architects and Engineers, Ramboll, 
Tractebel Engineering

Inspiring to Move Limits 
Established in 1974, SCIA has become one of the 
world’s leading developers of structural design and 
analysis software that supports the Open BIM pro-
cess. SCIA Engineer is an integrated, multi-material 
structural analysis and design software for all kinds 
of projects. Its wide range of functionality makes it 

industrial plants and bridges, all within the same easy-
to-use environment. SCIA is part of the Nemetschek 
Group – a leading global software provider for the 
Architecture, Engineering and Construction market 
(AEC).

www.scia.net
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REMUNERATION REPORT

SUPERVISORY BOARD

REMUNERATION OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD 

2014 Thousands of € Fixed components Variable components 2014

Kurt Dobitsch 30.0 118.5 148.5

Prof. Georg Nemetschek 22.5 118.5 141.0

Rüdiger Herzog 15.0 118.5 133.5

Total 67.5 355.5 423.0

EXECUTIVE BOARD

 

2015 Thousands of € Fixed components Variable components 2015

Kurt Dobitsch 30.0 141.5 171.5

Prof. Georg Nemetschek 22.5 141.5 164.0

Rüdiger Herzog 15.0 141.5 156.5

Total 67.5 424.5 492.0
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EXECUTIVE BOARD REMUNERATION – VALUE OF THE AMOUNTS GRANTED

Thousands of €

Patrik Heider Sean Flaherty

Spokesman of the Executive Board 
 since March 1, 2014

 

2014 
Initial Value 

2015 
Initial 
Value 

2015 
 

Mini- 
mum

2015 
 

Maxi- 
mum 

2014 
Initial Value 

2015 
Initial 
Value 

2015 
 

Mini- 
mum

2015 
 

Maxi- 
mum 

Fixed compensation 167 200 200 200 96 96 96 96

15 20 20 20 0 0 0 0

Total 182 220 220 220 96 96 96 96

One-year variable  
compensation 318 360 0 360 0 0 0 0

Multi-year variable 
compensation

LTIP  
2014 – 2016 92 161 0 249 92 161 0 249

 LTIP  
2015 – 2017 – 183 0 389 – 183 0 389

Total 592 924 220 1.218 188 440 96 734

Thousands of €

Viktor Várkonyi Dr. Tobias Wagner

 From August 29, 2013 
until March 31, 2014

2014 
Initial Value 

2015 
Initial 
Value 

2015 
 

Mini- 
mum

2015 
 

Maxi- 
mum 

2014 
Initial Value 

2015 
Initial 
Value 

2015 
 

Mini- 
mum

2015 
 

Maxi- 
mum 

Fixed compensation 96 96 96 96 67 – – – 

0 0 0 0 2 – – – 

Total 96 96 96 96 69 – – – 

One-year variable  
compensation 0 0 0 0 60 – – – 

Multi-year variable 
compensation

LTIP  
2014 – 2016 92 161 0 249 – – – – 

 LTIP  
2015 – 2017 – 183 0 389 – – – – 

Total 188 440 96 734 129 – – – 

OTHER DISCLOSURES
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EXECUTIVE BOARD REMUNERATION – CASH FLOW VIEW

Thousands of €

Patrik Heider Sean Flaherty

Spokesman of the Executive Board 
 since March 1, 2014

2015  
Initial Value 

2014  
Initial Value 

2015  
Initial Value 

2014  
Initial Value 

Fixed compensation 200 167 96 96 

20 15 0 0 

Total 220 182 96 96

One-year variable compensation 360 318 0 0 

Multi-year variable  
compensation

LTIP 
2014 – 2016 0 0 0 0 

LTIP 
2015 – 2017 0 0 0 0 

Total 580 500 96 96

Thousands of €

Fixed compensation

Total

One-year variable compensation

Multi-year variable  
compensation

LTIP 
2014 – 2016

LTIP 
2015 – 2017

Total

Viktor Várkonyi Dr. Tobias Wagner

From August 29, 2013 
until March 31, 2014

2015  
Initial Value 

2014  
Initial Value

2015  
Initial Value 

2014  
Initial Value

96 96 0 67 

0 0 0 2 

96 96 0 69

0 0 0 60 

0 0 – – 

0 0 – – 

96 96 0 129
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5 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS REPORT

6 FORECAST REPORT 2016 

6.1 FRAMEWORK 

ECONOMIC CONDITIONS*

 

 

* Source:  Annual report 2015/16; German Council of Economic Experts on its appraisal of overall economic development;  
http://www.sachverstaendigenrat-wirtschaft.de/index.html

OTHER DISCLOSURES
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CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY**

 

 

 

 

BUSINESS STRATEGY

GROWTH - ORGANIC AND NON-ORGANIC

** Sources:  EuroConstruct Summary Report, November 2015 
Construction Industry (Structural/Building Construction) USA, Germany Trade & Invest, September 2015 
Economic Trends Japan: Year end 2015/16; Germany Trade & Invest
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FOCUS ON INNOVATIONS AND CUSTOMER NEEDS

 

 

 

 

 

INTERNATIONALIZATION AND GLOBAL SALES

 

FINANCING, INVESTMENTS AND LIQUIDITY

DIVIDEND POLICY

OTHER DISCLOSURES
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OVERALL EVALUATION OF THE EXPECTED DEVELOPMENT 

 

 

 

 Nemetschek Group

revenues for the 

Design

The Build

In the Manage
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In the Media & Entertainment

 

NOTE ON FORECASTS

 

OTHER DISCLOSURES



“As a global leader in delivering unparalleled solu-

tions that enable designers to transform the world, 

Vectorworks empowers today‘s visionaries to create 

memorable experiences and to build things that matter. 

Whether exploring the possibilities of BIM, or ideating 

and creating in 2D or 3D, Vectorworks is the ultimate 

design package for realizing remarkable works.“

Sean Flaherty, Vectorworks

Segment:

Design

Company size:

173 employees

Locations:

Columbia, Atlanta, Las Vegas

Solutions:

Vectorworks Designer, Vectorworks Architect
Vectorworks Landmark, Vectorworks Spotlight
Vectorworks Fundamentals, ESP Vision, Renderworks

Awards and References

“Construction Computing Awards“, “One to 
Watch Honor“, Architosh’s “BEST of SHOW” 
winner at the AIA Convention 2015, 
“American Package Design Award 2016“ 
from Graphic Design USA for Vectorworks 2016

Explore the Possibilities 
of BIM and Beyond 
Leading global design software developer 
Vectorworks, Inc. empowers more than half a 
million designers in the architecture, landscape 
and entertainment industries to transform the 
world. Each day, Vectorworks‘ cutting-edge 
design products are put to work in more than 
85 countries in 11 languages. Since 1985, they 
have been committed to helping designers cap -
ture inspiration, nurture innovation, communicate 
effectively and bring their visions to life. Vectorworks 
features the best CAD and BIM software for Mac 
and Windows that puts BIM at the heart of the design 

iteration throughout the design life-cycle. Their latest 
software release included more than 100 impact-
ful updates, 70 of which were inspired by customer 
feedback.

www.vectorworks.net
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Mixed Use Complex, Paris, France

Architects: Hamonic + Masson

Image: Takuji Shimmura
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL  
STATEMENTS
(IFRS)
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Consolidated Financial Statements 
(IFRS)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

 
Thousands of € 2015 2014 [Notes]

Revenues 285,269 218,451 [1]

Own work capitalized 38 9

Other operating income 5,884 4,991 [2]

Operating Income 291,191 223,451  

Cost of materials/cost of purchased services – 9,749 – 8,620 [3]

Personnel expenses – 127,084 – 94,537 [4]

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and amortization of intangible assets – 16,781 – 10,288 [5]

thereof amortization of intangible assets due to purchase price allocation – 10,131 – 4,765 [5]

Other operating expenses – 84,872 – 63,501 [6]

Operating expenses – 238,486 – 176,946  

Operating results (EBIT) 52,705 46,505  

Interest income 178 152 [8]

Interest expenses – 705 – 224 [8]

Share of results of associated companies 970 – 42 [7]

1,035 169 [9]

Earnings before taxes (EBT) 54,183 46,560  

Income taxes – 16,401 – 13,102 [10]

Net income for the year 37,782 33,458  

Other comprehensive income:    

Difference from currency translation 10,482 59  

Subtotal of items of other comprehensive income that  
10,482 59

 

– 54 – 318

Tax effect 16 89

Subtotal of items of other comprehensive income that  
– 38 – 229

 

Subtotal other comprehensive income for the year 10,444 – 170

Total comprehensive income for the year 48,226 33,288  

   

Equity holders of the parent 35,896 31,486  

Non-controlling interests 1,886 1,972  

Net income for the year 37,782 33,458  

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:    

Equity holders of the parent 45,997 31,486  

Non-controlling interests 2,230 1,803  

Total comprehensive income for the year 48,227 33,288  

Earnings per share (undiluted) in euros 0.93 0.82* [11]

Earnings per share (diluted) in euros 0.93 0.82*  

Average number of shares outstanding (undiluted, units) 38,500,000 38,500,000*  

Average number of shares outstanding (diluted, units) 38,500,000 38,500,000*  

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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ASSETS  Thousands of €
December  

31, 2015
December  

31, 2014 [Notes]

Current assets    

Cash and cash equivalents 83,966 56,968 [24]

Trade receivables, net 29,611 28,869 [13]

Inventories 530 725 [14]

Tax refunded claims for income taxes 2,467 2,509 [14]

78 10 [14]

Other current assets 9,297 9,301 [14]

Current assets, total 125,949 98,382  

Non-current assets    

Property, plant and equipment 13,792 10,800 [12]

Intangible assets 100,761 68,770 [12]

Goodwill 134,949 111,285 [12]

Investments in associates and non-current  
available-for-sale assets 1,863 892

 

Deferred tax assets 1,372 727 [10]

51 59 [14]

Other non-current assets 793 772 [14]

Non-current assets, total 253,581 193,305  

Total assets 379,530 291,687  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Thousands of €
December  

31, 2015
December  

31, 2014 [Notes]

Current liabilities    

Short-term borrowings and current portion of long-term loans 18,577 12,000 [18]

Trade payables 6,590 5,784 [18]

Provisions and accrued liabilities 25,619 21,107 [17]

Deferred revenue 41,996 32,386 [19]

Income tax liabilities 3,707 4,712 [18]

571 1,633 [20]

Other current liabilities 7,086 6,640 [18]

Current liabilities, total 104,146 84,262  

Long-term borrowings without current portion 62,059 48,000 [18]

Deferred tax liabilities 24,315 15,438 [10]

Pensions and related obligations 1,744 1,667 [17]

13,732 1,336 [21]

Other non-current liabilities 6,617 4,408 [22]

Non-current liabilities, total 108,467 70,849  

Equity    

Subscribed capital 38,500 9,625 [15]

Capital reserve 12,485 41,360 [16]

Retained earnings 116,345 96,621 [16]

Other comprehensive income – 2,498 – 12,625 [16]

Equity (Group shares) 164,832 134,981  

Non-controlling interests 2,085 1,595  

Equity, total 166,917 136,576  

Total equity and liabilities 379,530 291,687  
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Thousands of € 2015 2014 [Notes]

54,183 46,560

16,781 10,288

Change in pension provision 23 146

Other non-cash transactions 70 – 381

Portion of the result of non-controlling interests – 970 42

– 498 0

420 371

70,009 57,026 [24]

Interest income – 178 – 152

Interest expenses 705 224

Change in other provisions 3,408 3,135

Change in trade receivables 12 – 4,291

Change in other assets 2,348 4,257

Change in trade payables 276 217

Change in other liabilities 1,911 – 5,555

Interest received 164 127

Income taxes received 1,150 1,026

Income taxes paid – 14,683 – 11,836

65,122 44,178 [24]

Capital expenditure – 7,629 – 3,548

Cash received from disposal of shares 1,166 0

205 185

Cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired – 35,145 – 75,984

– 41,403 – 79,347 [24]

Dividend payments – 15,400 – 12,513

Cash paid to non-controlling interests – 2,044 – 2,374

Cash received from bank loans 32,000 60,000

Interest paid – 629 – 1,131

Repayment of borrowings – 12,000 – 830

Payments for acquisition of non-controlling interests – 1,877 – 468

50 42,684 [24]

Changes in cash and cash equivalents 23,769 7,515

Effect of exchange rate differences on cash and cash equivalents 3,229 900

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 56,968 48,553

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 83,966 56,968 [24]

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Equity attributable to the parent company‘s shareholders

Thousands of € Subscribed capital Capital reserve Retained earnings  
currency  

conversion Total
Non-controlling  

interests Total  equity

As of January 1,  2014 9,625 41,360 78,367 – 12,785 116,567 1,598 118,165

Difference from  
currency translation    160 160 – 101 59

Remeasurement gains/losses  
from pensions and related  
obligations   – 160  – 160 – 69 – 229

Net income for the year   31,486  31,486 1,972 33,458

Total comprehensive  
income for the year   31,326 160 31,486 1,802 33,288

Share purchase from  
non-controlling interests     0 10 10

Dividend payments to 
non-controlling interests   – 559  – 559 – 1,815 – 2,374

Dividend payment   – 12,513  – 12,513 0 – 12,513

As of December 31,  2014 9,625 41,360 96,621 – 12,625 134,981 1,595 136,576

As of January 1, 2015 9,625 41,360 96,621 – 12,625 134,981 1,595 136,576

Difference from  
currency translation    10,127 10,127 356 10,482

Remeasurement gains/losses  
from pensions and related  
obligations   – 27  – 27 – 12 – 39

Net income for the year   35,896  35,896 1,886 37,782

Total comprehensive  
income for the year 0 0 35,869 10,127 45,996 2,230 48,226

Increase of share capital  
through corporate funds 28,875 – 28,875   0  0

Transactions with  
non-controlling interests   – 543  – 543 102 – 441

Dividend payments to 
non-controlling interests   – 202  – 202 – 1,842 – 2,044

Dividend payment   – 15,400  – 15,400  – 15,400

As of December 31,  2015 38,500 12,485 116,345 – 2,498 164,832 2,085 166,917

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 



Potsdamer Platz, Berlin, Germany

Administration: PPMG Potsdamer Platz 

Management GmbH 

Image: Vincent Mosch

“iX-Haus is modularly structured and completely 

scalable, and meaningfully integrates partner so-

lutions. These features, combined with our open 

communication culture, make it possible to indi-

requirements, needs and business processes and 

enable sustainable success for you.” 

Christian Westphal, Crem Solutions

Segment:

Manage

Company size:

38 employees

Location:

Ratingen

Solutions:

iX-Haus
iX-Hausplus
iX-Hausplus IHS

Awards and References:

Adler Real Estate Service GmbH, Grundstücksver-

Property Partners GmbH, Heinrich Bossert Immobilien 

KG, HIH Property Management GmbH, PPMG Pots-

damer Platz Management GmbH, PropertyFirst GmbH

The Software Solution for the 
Real Estate Sector

software solutions for commercial and technical real 

estate management. As a one hundred percent owned 

subsidiary of the Nemetschek Group, the company 

develops high-performance software for companies 

in the real estate management business. iX-Haus, the 

for the administration of real estate and covers the 

entire spectrum of modern commercial real estate 

management.

www.crem-solutions.de
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

THE COMPANY

today a leading global technology group with software solutions along the life cycle of architecture and structures in 

and specialist engineers – ranging all the way to construction software for cost and schedule planning, tenders, 

 

 

INFORMATION ON THE “GERMAN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE”
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NOTES

GENERAL INFORMATION

 

 

 

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

SUBSIDIARIES
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eliminations:

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

 

 

 

 

 

 

MAXON GmbH, Friedrichsdorf

Thousands of € 2015 2014

Percentage of non-controlling interests 30% 30%

Non-current assets 2,439 2,284

11,442 10,092

Non-current liabilities – 1,673 – 1,549

– 5,259 – 4,849

Net Assets 6,949 5,978

Carrying amount of the non-controlling interests 2,085 1,793

Revenues 21,512 19,099

Net income 5,795 5,683

338 80

Total comprehensive income 6,133 5,763

1,739 1,705

Non-controlling interests associated other comprehensive income 101 24

6,640 6,563

– 393 – 618

– 5,164 – 5,112

(thereof: Dividends paid to non-controlling interests) – 5,164 – 5,112

476 404

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,559 1,237
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NOTES

 

 

ASSOCIATES ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

Thousands of € Shareholding in %
 

Dec. 31, 2015 pro rata

DocuWare GmbH, Germering 22.41 5,828 1,306

Sablono GmbH, Berlin 29.00 297 86

 

DOCUWARE GROUP

Thousands of € Shareholding in %
 

Dec. 31, 2015
Net income / loss  
for the year 2015

Sidoun International GmbH, Freiburg i. Breisgau* 16.27 784 56

20.00 2,958 468

rivera GmbH, Karlsruhe  
via NEVARIS Bausoftware GmbH 20.00 39** 14**

 

  Thousands of € Dec. 31, 2015 Dec. 31, 2014

25,074 14,359

4,228 4,130

23,204 16,645

271 170

Revenues 34,550 27,752

Net income from continuing operations 4,297 1,741

Net income from non-continuing operations 0 0

Net income for the year 4,297 1,741

Difference from currency translation – 267 – 124

Other comprehensive income 4,030 1,617

Dividends received from associated company 0 0
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AFFILIATED ENTITIES

Shareholding in %

Nemetschek Aktiengesellschaft, Munich

Direct equity investments

Design segment

Frilo Software GmbH, Stuttgart (formerly: Nemetschek Frilo GmbH)* 100.00

100.00

Data Design System AS, Klepp Stasjon, Norway 100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

Allplan GmbH, Munich (formerly: Nemetschek Allplan Systems GmbH)* 100.00

Build segment

NEVARIS Bausoftware GmbH, Achim (formerly: Nemetschek Bausoftware GmbH) 98.50

NEVARIS Bausoftware GmbH, Mondsee, Austria (formerly: AUER – Die Bausoftware GmbH) 49.90

Nemetschek US, Inc., Delaware, USA 100.00

100.00

Manage segment

100.00

100.00

Media & Entertainment segment

70.00

Other

Nemetschek Austria Beteiligungen GmbH, Mondsee, Austria 100.00

Indirect equity investments

Design segment

via Allplan GmbH, Munich (formerly: Nemetschek Allplan Systems GmbH):

Allplan Deutschland GmbH, Munich (formerly: Nemetschek Allplan Deutschland GmbH)* 100.00

Allplan Schweiz AG, Wallisellen, Switzerland (formerly: Nemetschek Allplan Schweiz AG) 93.33

100.00

Allplan Österreich Ges.m.b.H., Wals, Austria (formerly: Nemetschek Allplan Österreich Ges.m.b.H) 100.00

Allplan Systems España S.A., Madrid, Spain (formerly: Nemetschek España S.A.) 100.00

100.00

Allplan Slovensko s.r.o., Bratislava, Slovakia Republik (formerly: Nemetschek Allplan Slovensko s.r.o.) 100.00

Allplan Italia S.r.l., Trient, Italy (formerly: Nemetschek Italia S.r.l.) 100.00

100.00

100.00
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NOTES

TABLE CONTINUED

 
via Nemetschek Austria Beteiligungen GmbH:  

Precast Software Engineering GmbH, Wals, Austria (formerly: Nemetschek Engineering GmbH) 100.00

via Precast Software Engineering GmbH, Wals, Austria (formerly: Nemetschek Engineering GmbH):  

100.00

 

 
100.00

 

100.00

100.00

100.00

70.00

99.90

100.00

100.00

Graphisoft Deutschland GmbH, Munich 100.00

Graphisoft North America, Inc., Waltham, Massachusetts, USA 100.00

Graphisoft Japan KK, Tokyo, Japan 100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

via Data Design System AS, Klepp Stasjon, Norway:

DDS Building Innovation AS, Klepp Stasjon, Norway 100.00

100.00

Data Design System GmbH, Ascheberg 100.00

Build segment  

via Nemetschek US, Inc., Delaware, USA:

Bluebeam Software, Inc., Pasadena, USA 100.00

via Bluebeam Software, Inc., Pasadena, USA:

Bluebeam AB, Krisa, Sweden 100.00

via Nemetschek Austria Beteiligungen GmbH:

NEVARIS Bausoftware GmbH, Mondsee, Austria (formerly: AUER – Die Bausoftware GmbH) 50.10

via NEVARIS Bausoftware GmbH, Mondsee, Austria (formerly: AUER – Die Bausoftware GmbH):

NEVARIS BIM Software GmbH, Berlin (formerly: hartmann technologies Gesellschaft mbH) 86.50

100.00

100.00

Media & Entertainment segment  

 

90.00

100.00

100.00

 
•  
•  
• 
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ACCOUNTING AND VALUATION PRINCIPLES

TABLE OF USEFUL LIVES OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Useful life  
in years

3

Motor vehicles 5

3 – 10

5 – 10
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NOTES

 

 

 

the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when 

 

 

 



138

 

USEFUL LIFE OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS FROM THE PURCHASE PRICE ALLOCATION

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net  

 

| | |   the intention to manufacture, use or sell the intangible asset,

| | |   the ability to manufacture, use or sell the intangible asset,

| | |   

| | |   

| | |   

PREPAID EXPENSES

Useful life in years           

Brand name 10 - 15

Trademarks 10

Software 3 - 12

10 - 17

Non-compete agreements 2
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NOTES

 

 

STATEMENT
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 characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not carried at  
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NOTES
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143

NOTES

 

derecognized when one of the following three conditions is met:

| | |   

| | |    

| | |   
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NOTES

DEFERRED REVENUE

 

 

 

RESERVES
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TAXES

DEFERRED TAX

 

liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the 
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NOTES

| | |  

| | |

| | |

| | |

| | |
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| | |

| | |

| | |   the stage of completion of the transaction at the balance sheet date can be measured reliably, and

| | |

 

 

accordance with the percentage of completion, measured by reference to the percentage of contract costs  

 

 

3 

 

 

 

4 HARDWARE

5 TRAINING
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NOTES

DIVIDENDS

For the purpose of managing the company, management has split the group into business segments and has four 
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| | |   

or

| | |

 

Contracts with customers under which the sale of software licenses represents the only performance obligation are 

| | |   

conditions;
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NOTES

| | |

the changes being charged to income;

| | |

| | |

| | |

| | |  

employees for these management duties;

| | |

SHARES
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NOTES

| | |   

| | |

| | |

 

| | |

 

 

| | |
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SIGNIFICANT DISCRETIONARY DECISIONS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS WHEN 
PREPARING THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 

 

 

 

 

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 
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NOTES

 

CURRENCY TRANSLATION
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EXCHANGE RATES

Average exchange  
rate in 2015

Exchange rate as of 
December 31, 2015

 
rate in 2014

 
December 31, 2014

1.11 1.09 1.33 1.21

1.07 1.08 1.21 1.20

27.28 27.02 27.54 27.74

68.07 80.67 50.95 72.34

134.31 131.07 140.31 145.23

310.00 315.98 308.71 315.54

0.73 0.73 0.81 0.78

3.70 4.31 3.12 3.22

17.62 18.91 17.66 17.87

8.95 9.60 8.35 9.04

1.53 1.54 1.68 1.61

6.97 7.06 8.19 7.54

1.42 1.51 – –

9.35 9.19 – –
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NOTES

 

 

 

 

 

SOLIBRI GROUP

Thousands of € 2015

Goodwill 15,662

36,266

121

201

21

Trade accounts receivable 797

180

909

Total assets acquired 54,157

7,337

402

Trade accounts payable 340

781

0

459

Total liabilities assumed 9,319

Net assets acquired 44,838

Purchase price 44,838



 

Cologne, Germany

158158



and asserting open exchange and calculation 

work environments.”

Harald Egel, MAXON

Segment:

Company size:

107 employees

Locations:

Friedrichsdorf, Bedford, Boulogne-Billancourt, 
Montreal, Newbury Park, Shinagawa-ku Tokyo, 
Singapore 

Solutions:

BodyPaint 3D

Awards and References:

In the motion picture industry, time and again, 

major contributors to the production of internationally 
successful blockbusters such as “The Martian”, 
“The Hunger Games: Mockingjay”, “Avengers: Age 

Perfect Illusion

professional solutions for 3D modeling, painting, ani-

4D and BodyPaint 3D have won multiple awards and 
are used worldwide in numerous productions in the 

well as in the visualization of architecture, medicine, 

Friedrichsdorf near Frankfurt am Main, Germany, was 
founded in 1986 and has been part of the Nemetschek 
Group since 2000. 

159159
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BITE DESIGN LTD.

 

 

 

Thousands of € 2015

Goodwill 908

3

Trade accounts receivable 47

333

Total assets acquired 1,291

43

Trade accounts payable 8

43

Total liabilities assumed 94

Net assets acquired 1,196

Purchase price 1,196
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NOTES

BLUEBEAM AB

| | |

 

 

| | |  

 

 

 

 

 

Thousands of  € 2015

Goodwill 216

15

Trade accounts receivable 98

54

433

Total assets acquired 816

20

Trade accounts payable 158

104

Total liabilities assumed 282

Net assets acquired 534

Purchase price 534
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NOTES

BLUEBEAM SOFTWARE, INC.

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Thousands of €
Preliminary PPA as  Final PPA as of  

October 31, 2014

Goodwill 48,497 346 48,843

43,519 140 43,659

5,303 0 5,303

Trade accounts receivable 1,686 0 1,686

3,577 0 3,577

6,551 0 6,551

Total assets acquired 109,133 486 109,619

12,090 355 12,445

2,682 0 2,682

Trade accounts payable 262 0 262

9,351 – 752 8,599

3,093 0 3,093

Total liabilities assumed 27,478 – 397 27,081

Net assets acquired 81,655 882 82,537

Purchase price 81,655 882 82,537
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NEVARIS BIM SOFTWARE GMBH (FORMERLY: HARTMANN TECHNOLOGIES GESELLSCHAFT MBH) 

 

 

 

INVESTMENTS

Thousands of € 2014

Goodwill 2,118

1,231

43

340

Trade accounts receivable 103

10

Total assets acquired 3,845

370

71

Trade accounts payable 17

1,195

Total liabilities assumed 1,653

Net assets acquired 2,192

Non-controlling interests – 10

Purchase price 2,182
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REVENUES

 
Thousands of € 2015 2014

Software and licenses 150,393 105,034

Recurring Revenues 122,444 101,085

Services (consulting and training) 12,210 12,128

Hardware 222 204

285,269 218,451

-

 

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

 
Thousands of € 2015 2014

Foreign exchange rate gains 2,956 3,412

Offsetting other services 594 505

Development subsidies 585 616

460 185

Income from compensation claims 220 0

Other 1,069 273

5,884 4,991

Revenues

NOTES
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COST OF MATERIALS

Thousands of € 2015 2014

Cost of purchased materials 8,190 7,543

Cost of purchased services 1,559 1,077

9,749 8,620

 

PERSONNEL EXPENSES

Thousands of € 2015 2014

Wages and salaries 105,930 78,146

Social security, other pension costs and welfare 21,154 16,391

127,084 94,537

HEADCOUNT

Number of employees 2015 2014

Sales / marketing / hotline 732 621

Development 722 606

Administration 211 157

Average headcount for the year 1,664 1,384

Headcount as of December 31 1,754 1,559

AMORTIZATION AND DEPRECIATION

Thousands of € 2015 2014

Amortization of intangible assets excluding intangible assets,  
which were disclosed as part of purchase price allocation 2,650 3,104

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4,000 2,419

Depreciation / amortization of tangible, intangible  
and long-term available-for-sale assets 6,650 5,523

Amortization due to purchase price allocated intangible assets 10,131 4,765

Total amortization and depreciation 16,781 10,288 

[

[

 

[



167

 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

  

 

INTEREST INCOME/EXPENSES

 
Thousands of € 2015 2014

Other interest and similar income 178 152

Interest and similar expenses – 705 – 224

– 527 – 72

-

INCOME TAXES 

 

 

 

 

[

 
Thousands of € 2015 2014

Marketing expenses 16,585 8,644

Commissions 12,409 11,697

Expenses for third-party services 11,508 10,529

Rents 9,921 7,896

Legal and consulting expenses 8,326 6,263

Travel expenses and hospitality 6,562 4,943

EDP equipment 4,251 2,497

Vehicle expenses 2,752 2,484

Currency translation expenses 2,287 1,311

Retraining expenses and recruiting expenses 1,745 1,255

Communication expenses 1,592 1,471

Other 6,934 4,511

84,872 63,501

[

 

[

[

 
Thousands of € 2015 2014

Current tax expenses – 18,748 – 13,492

Deferred tax income 2,347 390

Total income taxes – 16,401 – 13,102

NOTES
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INCOME TAX RATE

 in % 2015 2014 2013

Earnings before taxes 100.0 100.0 100.0

Trade tax (weighted) 16.7 16.7 16.7 16.7 16.8 16.8

83.3 83.3 83.2

Corporate income tax 15.0 15.0 15.0 15.0 15.0 15.0

Solidarity surcharge 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8

67.5 32.5 67.5 32.5 67.4 32.6
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DEFERRED TAXES

Thousands of €

Consolidated balance sheet

2015 2014

Assets   

Intangible assets 8 15

Property, plant and equipment 840 600

Receivables 30 34

Pensions and related obligations 331 372

Provisions 904 365

Liabilities 4,161 1,852

Tax loss carryforward 1,903 4,405

Other 91 1,130

Offsetting – 6,896 – 8,047

1,372 727

Liabilities   

Intangible assets 27,652 22,044

Property, plant and equipment 596 321

Receivables 99 45

Provisions 25 689

Liabilities 2,451 0

Other 388 386

Offsetting – 6,896 – 8,047

24,315 15,438

NOTES
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INCOME TAX RECONCILIATION

Thousands of € 2015 2014

Earnings before taxes 54,183 46,560

Theoretical tax rate 32.5% (p.y. 32.5%) 17,599 15,121

Differences to German and foreign tax rates – 1,791 – 1,483

Tax effects on:

At equity consolidation of associated companies – 311 0

Change in the recoverability of deferred tax assets and tax credits 806 974

Change of deferred taxes on permanent differences – 272 – 1,045

Effect of taxes, previous years – 89 – 692

Non-deductible expenses 1,228 1,393

Effect of functional currency 1,561 0

Tax-free income – 2,785 – 1,421

Tax rate changes and adaptation – 135 10

Other 590 245

Effective tax expense 16,401 13,102

Effective tax rate 30.3% 28.1%

DEFERRED TAX ON LOSSES CARRIED FORWARD

Thousands of € 2015 2014

Losses according to entities 59,028 61,649

Deferred tax assets, gross 9,825 11,073

Allowances on tax losses carried forward – 7,922 – 6,668

Deferred tax assets on unused tax losses, net 1,903 4,405
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EARNINGS PER SHARE

EARNINGS PER SHARE

2015 2014

Net income attributable to the parent (in thousands of EUR) 35,896 31,486

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding  
as of December 31 38,500,000 38,500,000*

Weighted average number of ordinary shares to be included in the  
calculation of diluted earnings per share as of December 31 38,500,000 38,500,000*

Earnings per share in EUR, undiluted 0.93 0.82*

Earnings per share in EUR, diluted 0.93 0.82*

NOTES
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Montforthaus, Feldkirch, Austria

Architects: HASCHER JEHLE Architektur, 

Berlin, Germany

Image: David Matthiessen

“NEVARIS offers a complete, holistic 5D so -

lution that encompasses the range from buil -

ding information modeling, traditional tenders/

awarding of contracts/ invoicing, calculation 

and scheduling all the way to cost accounting 

and cost determination.”

Michael Homscheid and Wolfgang Götz, NEVARIS

Segment:

Build

Company size:

113 employees

Locations:

Achim, Wals-Siezenheim

Solutions:

NEVARIS iceBIM
NEVARIS Build
NEVARIS Finance

Awards and References:

red dot Award, German Design Award, 
Montforthaus (Feldkirch, Austria), 
Brandenburg State Parliament (Potsdam, Germany) 

Holistically Integrated Solution
Since October 1, 2015, Nemetschek Bausoftware and 
Nemetschek Auer, which were previously individual 
brands, have been acting under the company name 
NEVARIS Bausoftware GmbH. NEVARIS offers a com-
plete, holistic 5D solution that encompasses the range 
from building information modeling, traditional tenders/
awarding of contracts/invoicing and calculation all the 

jointly developed commercial/technical software for 
the construction industry stands for modern, trans-
parent work processes that take ergonomics into 
consideration. NEVARIS makes it possible to create 
an intelligent 3D building model that is based on con-
sistent data. 

www.nevaris.com

173173
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

 

as follows:

INTANGIBLE ASSETS FROM THE PURCHASE PRICE ALLOCATION OF SOLIBRI GROUP

INTANGIBLE ASSETS FROM THE PURCHASE PRICE ALLOCATION OF BLUEBEAM*

INTANGIBLE ASSETS FROM THE PURCHASE PRICE ALLOCATION OF DDS GROUP*

INTANGIBLE ASSETS FROM THE PURCHASE PRICE ALLOCATION OF GRAPHISOFT GROUP*

 Fair value at time of 
acquisition Dec. 31, 2006 Useful life in years Amortization 2015

Net book value as  
of Dec. 31, 2015

Net book value as  
of Dec. 31, 2014

Brand name 5,300 15 287 1,687 1,971

2,800 10 227 223 446

Software 27,100 7 0 0 0

Customer relationship 27,300 12 2,148 6,390 8,330

Intangible assets 62,500  2,662 8,300 10,747
 
*  Based on the translation of intangible assets held in foreign currency from the purchase price allocation of Bluebeam, DDS Group and Graphisoft Group, adjustments arise 

-

 Fair value at time of 
acquisition Dec. 31, 2015 Useful life in years Amortization 2015

Net book value as  
of Dec. 31, 2015

Brand name 1,888 10 0 1,888

Software 20,599 10 0 20,599

Customer relationship  13,316 13 0 13,316

Non-compete agreements 455 2 0 455

Intangible assets 36,258  0 36,258

 Fair value at time of  
acquisition Oct. 31, 2014 Useful life in years Amortization 2015

Net book value as  
of Dec. 31, 2015

Net book value as  
of Dec. 31, 2014

Brand name 3,130 12 266 3,292 3,102

Software 13,940 10 1,343 14,477 13,539

Customer relationship reseller 9,380 17 1,247 9,303 9,482

Customer relationship other 17,209 15 3,228 15,921 17,846

Intangible assets 43,659  6,085 42,993 43,968

 Fair value at time of  
acquisition Nov. 30, 2013 Useful life in years Amortization 2015

Net book value as  
of Dec. 31, 2015

Net book value as  
of Dec. 31, 2014

Software 5,325 12 596 3,461 4,266

Customer relationship 1,899 15 299 1,137 1,464

Intangible assets 7,224  895 4,598 5,730
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NOTES

INTANGIBLE ASSETS FROM THE PURCHASE PRICE ALLOCATION OF SCIA GROUP

 
Fair value at time  

of acquisition  
Feb. 28, 2006

Useful life  
in years 

Amortization  
2015

Net book value as 
of Dec. 31, 2015

Net book value as  
of Dec. 31, 2014

Software 1,000 3 0 0 0

Customer relationship 2,700 10 270 45 315

Intangible assets 3,700  270 45 315

 
GOODWILL

GOODWILL DEVELOPMENT

 
2015 2014

Amount carried forward as of January 1 111,285 60,112

Additions 18,661 52,744

Disposals – 697 0

Currency differences 5,700 – 1,571

Balance as of December 31 134,949 111,285

GOODWILL ALLOCATION

 
2015 2014

Bluebeam Software Inc., Pasadena, USA 56,407 50,027

Graphisoft SE European Company Limited by Shares, Budapest, Hungary 21,938 20,339

Solibri Oy, Helsinki, Finland 15,662 0

NEVARIS Group 14,145 14,145

Data Design System AS, Klepp Stasjon, Norway 9,817 10,542

Vectorworks Inc., Columbia, Maryland, USA 6,163 4,752

MAXON Computer GmbH, Friedrichsdorf 3,007 3,007

SCIA Group NV, Herk-de-Stad, Belgium 2,785 2,785

CREM Solutions GmbH & Co. KG, Ratingen  
(formerly: Nemetschek CREM Solutions GmbH & Co. KG, Ratingen) 2,028 2,028

Frilo Software GmbH, Stuttgart (formerly: Nemetschek Frilo GmbH, Stuttgart) 1,293 1,293

Allplan GmbH, Munich (formerly: Nemetschek Allplan Systems GmbH, Munich) 1,703 1,669

GLASER -isb cad- Programmsysteme GmbH, Wennigsen 0 697

Total goodwill 134,949 111,285
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| | |   

| | |   

| | |   
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NOTES

 

 

INCREASE IN PERSONNEL EXPENSES

-
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MATERIAL GOODWILL

2015

Carrying 
value of the 

goodwill 
allocable to 
the CGU in 
thousand €

Share in total 
goodwill %

Discount rate 

in %

Discount rate 

in %
Growth rate 

in %

Description of the  
basic assumptions  
for corporate plan

Presentation of approach for  
determination of values  

for the basic assumptions

Bluebeam Software, Inc., 
Pasadena, USA 56,407 42% 13.10 8.46 1.00

• Sales prices
and sales volumes

• Personnel costs
• Market development

Intra-group estimation of the  
relevant sales departments  

including distribution partners  
and accounting for investments  
in personnel structures. General  
economic framework conditions  
as well as sector-related market  

studies are also included.

Graphisoft SE  
European Company  
Limited by Shares,  
Budapest, Hungary 21,938 16% 13.38 12.18 1.00

•  Sales prices and
sales volumes

•  Personnel costs
•  Market development
•  

development HUF/USD

Intra-group estimation of the  
relevant sales departments  

including distribution partners  
and accounting for investments  
in personnel structures. General  

economic framework conditions,  
 

developments as well as  
sector-related market studies  

are also included.

Solibri Oy, Helsinki,  
Finland 15,662 12% 10.22 8.46 1.00

•  Sales prices
and sales volumes

•  Personnel costs
•  Market development

Intra-group estimation of the  
relevant sales departments  

including distribution partners  
and accounting for investments  
in personnel structures. General  
economic framework conditions  
as well as sector-related market  

studies are also included.

Nevaris Group 14,145 10% 11.65 8.46 1.00

•  Sales prices
and sales volumes

•  Personnel costs
•  Market development

Intra-group estimation of  
the relevant sales departments  
including distribution partners  

and accounting for investments  
in personnel structures. General  
economic framework conditions  
as well as sector-related market  

studies are also included.

Data Design System AS,  
Klepp Stasjon, Norway 9,817 7% 11.15 8.46 0.00

•  Sales prices
and sales volumes

•  Personnel costs
•  Market development

Intra-group estimation of the  
relevant sales departments including 
distribution partners and accounting  

for investments in personnel  
structures. General economic  

framework conditions as well as  
sector-related market studies  

are also included.

Vectorworks, Inc.,  
Columbia, Maryland, USA 6,163 5% 13.28 8.46 0.00

•  Sales prices and
sales volumes

•  Personnel costs
•  Market development
•  

development USD/EUR

Intra-group estimation of the  
relevant sales departments  

including distribution partners  
and accounting for investments  
in personnel structures. General  

economic framework conditions,  
 

developments as well as sector- 
related market studies are   

also included.
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NOTES

MATERIAL GOODWILL

2014

Carrying 
value of the 

goodwill 
allocable to 
the CGU in 
thousand €

Share in total 
goodwill %

Discount rate 

in %

Discount rate 

in %
Growth rate 

in %

Description of the  
basic assumptions  
for corporate plan

Presentation of approach for  
determination of values  

for the basic assumptions

Bluebeam Software, Inc., 
Pasadena, USA 50,027 45% 12.52 8.06 1.50

•  Sales prices 
 and sales volumes 
•  Personnel costs 
•  Market development

Intra-group estimation of the  
relevant sales departments  

including distribution partners  
and accounting for investments  
in personnel structures. General  
economic framework conditions  
as well as sector-related market  

studies are also included.

Graphisoft SE  
European Company  
Limited by Shares,  
Budapest, Hungary 20,339 18% 13.39 11.81 1.00

•  Sales prices and  
 sales volumes 
•  Personnel costs 
•  Market development 
•   
 development HUF/USD

Intra-group estimation of the  
relevant sales departments  

including distribution partners  
and accounting for investments  
in personnel structures. General  

economic framework conditions,  
 

developments, as well as  
sector-related market studies  

are also included.

Nevaris Group 14,145 13% 11.75 8.06 0.00

•  Sales prices 
 and sales volumes 
•  Personnel costs 
•  Market development

Intra-group estimation of  
the relevant sales departments  
including distribution partners  

and accounting for investments  
in personnel structures. General  
economic framework conditions  
as well as sector-related market  

studies are also included.

Data Design System AS,  
Klepp Stasjon, Norway 10,542 9% 10.75 8.06 1.00

•  Sales prices  
 and sales volumes 
•  Personnel costs 
•  Market development

Intra-group estimation of the  
relevant sales departments including 
distribution partners and accounting  

for investments in personnel  
structures. General economic  

framework conditions as well as  
sector-related market studies  

are also included.

Vectorworks, Inc.,  
Columbia, Maryland, USA 4,752 4% 12.09 8.06 1.50

•  Sales prices and  
 sales volumes 
•  Personnel costs 
•  Market development 
•   
 development USD/EUR  

Intra-group estimation of the  
relevant sales departments including 
distribution partners and accounting  

for investments in personnel  
structures. General economic  

framework conditions, forecasts  
 

as well as sector-related market  
studies are also included.
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TRADE RECEIVABLES

DEVELOPMENT OF BAD DEBT ALLOWANCE

 
January 1 Utilization Release Charges December 31

Bad debt allowances 2015 – 3,057 788 530 – 995 – 2,734

Bad debt allowances 2014 – 3,626 915 683 – 1,029 – 3,057

 

AGEING STRUCTURE OF TRADE RECEIVABLES

 
Not past due

Past due (by 
< 30 days)

Past due (by 
30 – 60 days)

Past due (by 
60 – 90 days)

Past due (by 
90 – 180 days)

Past due (by 
180 – 360 days)

Past due (by 
> 360 days)

December 
31, 2015

 
receivables 2015 18,950 5,736 1,698 966 1,498 1,037 2,460 32,345

 
allowance for bad debts – 68 – 67 – 32 – 26 – 106 – 241 – 2,194 – 2,734

 
receivables 2015 18,882 5,669 1,666 940 1,392 796 266 29,611

ASSETS

 
2015 2014

Inventories 530 725

2,467 2,509

78 10

Other current assets 9,297 9,301

51 59

Other non-current assets 793 773

13,216 13,377

 
2015 2014

32,345 31,926

– 2,734 – 3,057

Trade receivables 29,611 28,869

 
Not past due

Past due (by 
< 30 days)

Past due (by 
30 – 60 days)

Past due (by 
60 – 90 days)

Past due (by 
90 – 180 days)

Past due (by 
180 – 360 days)

Past due (by 
> 360 days)

December 
31, 2014

 
receivables 2014 17,929 6,160 2,205 676 1,690 663 2,602 31,926

 
allowance for bad debts – 17 – 62 – 78 – 18 – 182 – 97 – 2,602 – 3,057

 
receivables 2014 17,912 6,098 2,127 658 1,508 566 0 28,869

claims, other assets,
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NOTES

 

 

 

 

 

The capital reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve

DIVIDENDS

 

PROVISIONS AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

 
2015 2014

Personnel provisions 12,852 11,861

Outstanding invoices 5,714 4,545

Vacation accrued by employees 3,674 2,705

Legal and consulting fees 646 531

Guarantees and liability risks 148 137

Other accrued liabilities 2,585 1,328

25,619 21,107

 

 

 

 

foreign currency

translation / dividends

Provisions,
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PENSION PROVISIONS
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NOTES

PROVISIONS FOR PENSIONS

 
January 1 Changes December 31

3,051 69 3,120

Plan asset 2015 1,532 77 1,609

Status of coverage (= Pension provisions) 2015 1,519 – 8 1,511

2,481 570 3,051

Plan asset 2014 1,457 75 1,532

Status of coverage (= Pension provisions) 2014 1,024 495 1,519

 

 

 

 

2015 2014

3,051 2,481

Service cost 124 115

Interest cost 72 89

Actuarial gains/(losses) – 3 498

Acquisitions/(divestitures) 0 0

Settlements – 44 – 42

Effect from currency translation – 80 – 90

3,120 3,051

Change in plan assets:   

1,532 1,457

28 46

Actuarial gains/(losses) – 23 – 11

Acquisitions/(divestitures) 0 0

Employer contributions 178 159

– 44 – 42

Effect from currency translation – 62 – 77

1,609 1,532
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SENSITIVITY

Changes in actuarial assumptions 2015 2014

Present value of pension obligation  
for the reporting date 3,120 3,051

Discount rate increase by 0,5 percent points 2,850 2,780

decrease by 0,5 percent points 3,429 3,357

Pension cost increase by 0,5 percent points 3,278 3,270

decrease by 0,5 percent points 3,003 2,943

Salary increase by 0,5 percent points 3,149 3,084

decrease by 0,5 percent points 3,092 3,018

 

DISCOUNT RATE

in % 2015 2014

Domestic Foreign Countries Domestic Foreign Countries

Discount rate 2.30 2.50 2.45 2.30

Future pension increases 1.00 0 1.00 0

Compensation increase 0 2.50 0 2.75

 

FUTURE PENSION PAYMENTS

Domestic Foreign Countries

2016 1 39 40

2017 3 48 51

2018 5 48 53

2019 7 59 66

2020 10 59 68

2021 – 2025 106 339 445

Total 131 592 723
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NOTES

The liabilities

LIABILITIES

2015 Total amount Less than 1 year 1 to 5 years More than 5 years

Loans 80,636 18,577 62,059 0

6,590 6,590 0 0

3,707 3,707 0 0

Other current liabilities 7,086 7,086 0 0

3,724 3,724 0 0

thereof relating to social security 1,178 1,178 0 0

December 31, 2015 98,019 35,960 62,059 0

 

2014 Total amount Less than 1 year 1 to 5 years More than 5 years

Loans 60,000 12,000 48,000 0

5,748 5,748 0 0

4,712 4,712 0 0

Other liabilities 6,640 6,640 0 0

3,453 3,453 0 0

thereof relating to social security 1,043 1,043 0 0

December 31, 2014 77,100 29,100 48,000 0

 

 

 

 

LIABILITIES TO BANKS

 

[

Repayment Effective interest rate Due < 1 year Due > 1 year

 
 

60,000 Dec. 31, 2019

quarter-year rates  
of EUR 3m starting  

from March 31, 2015 1.03% 12,000 48,000

 
32,000 Dec. 31, 2020

quarter-year rates  
of EUR 3m starting  

from March 31, 2016 0.94% 6,400 25,600



186

DEFERRED REVENUE

 

FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

Total Less than 1 year 1 to 5 years More than 5 years

Rental agreements 43,813 20,482 21,826 1,505

Leases 6,525 3,333 3,078 114

December 31, 2015 50,338 23,815 24,904 1,619

Rental agreements 25,075 7,551 15,301 2,223

Leases 3,401 1,190 2,060 151

December 31, 2014 28,476 8,741 17,361 2,374

 

[

Deferred revenue 

Other current  

Other non-current 

Other non-current 

3

Financial  

commitments / 

contingent

 

contingent assets
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NOTES

 

The 

operating activities

 investing activities

GLASER

 

 

The group‘s cash and cash equivalents

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

 
2015 2014

Bank balances 81,200 54,108

2,766 2,860

Cash and cash equivalents 83,966 56,968

 

4
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classes:

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

5

Financial instruments /

Measurement in accordance with IAS 39

2015

Carrying value  
per balance sheet 

Dec. 31, 2015 Amortized cost

Fair value  
impacting  

Fair value  
not impacting  Fair value 

Dec. 31, 2015

29,611 29,611 29,611

Loans and receivables 29,611 29,611

191 141 50 191

Loans and receivables 141 50 191

Cash and cash equivalents 83,966 83,966 83,966

113,768

thereof in accordance with measurement 
categories of IAS 39:

Loans and receivables 113,718 113,768

Financial liabilities measured  
at amortized cost

6,590 6,590 6,590

94,939 80,725 14,214 94,939

Financial liabilities measured at 
amortized cost 80,725 80,725

Conditional purchase price obligation 14,214 14,214 14,214

101,529

thereof in accordance with valuation 
categories of IAS 39:

Financial liabilities measured at  
amortized cost 87,315 87,315 87,315

Conditional purchase price obligation 14,214 14,214 14,214
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Measurement in accordance with IAS 39

2014

Carrying value  
per balance sheet 

Dec. 31, 2014 Amortized cost

Fair value  
impacting  

Fair value  
not impacting  Fair value 

Dec. 31, 2014

28,869 28,869   28,869

Loans and receivables  28,869   28,869

207 207   207

Loans and receivables  207   207

Cash and cash equivalents 56,968 56,968   56,968

86,044     

thereof in accordance with measurement 
categories of IAS 39:      

Loans and receivables  86,044   86,044

     

Financial liabilities measured  
at amortized cost      

5,784 5,784   5,784

62,969 61,633 1,336  62,969

Financial liabilities measured at 
amortized cost 61,633 61,633    

Conditional purchase price obligation 1,336  1,336  1,336

68,753     

thereof in accordance with valuation 
categories of IAS 39:      

Financial liabilities measured at  
amortized cost 67,417 67,417   67,417

Conditional purchase price obligation 1,336  1,336  1,336
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measurement hierarchy:

MEASUREMENT HIERARCHY

-

 

 

 

 

 

MEASUREMENT HIERARCHY

2015
Year-end 

Dec. 31, 2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial liabilities at fair value

Contingent consideration 14.214 14.214

Derivatives without balance sheet hedging  
50 50

Derivatives with balance sheet hedging  
relationship (hedge accounting)

Derivatives with balance sheet hedging  
relationship (hedge accounting)

Total 14.264 50 0 14.214

2014
Year-end 

Dec. 31, 2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial liabilities at fair value

Contingent consideration 1,336 1,336

Derivatives with balance sheet hedging  
relationship (hedge accounting)

Derivatives with balance sheet hedging  
relationship (hedge accounting)

Total 1,336 1,336
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-

-

-
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SENSITIVITY OF USD / EUR

 
rate USD

Sensitivity effect on 
Revenues

Fiscal year 2015    

+ 5% – 4,801 – 1,019

 – 5% 5,306 1,126

Fiscal year 2014    

+ 5% – 2,416 – 837

 – 5% 2,671 925

SENSITIVITY OF HUF / EUR

 
rate HUF

Sensitivity effect on 
Revenues

Fiscal year 2015    

+ 5% – 1,010 – 74

 – 5% 1,116 82

Fiscal year 2014    

+ 5% – 927 – 77

 – 5% 1,025 85
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NOTES

TRADE RECEIVABLES 

 

 

2015
Change of  

exchange rate

HUF/EUR + 5% – 123

total in kEUR: 2,588 – 5% 136

HUF/USD + 5% – 10

total in kEUR: 218 – 5% 11

+ 5% 0

total in kEUR: 0 – 5% 0

2014
Change of  

exchange rate

HUF/EUR + 5% – 410

total in kEUR: 8,610 – 5% 453

HUF/USD + 5% – 64

total in kEUR: 1,353 – 5% 71

+ 5% – 45

total in kEUR: 941 – 5% 50
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NOTES

SEGMENT REPORTING

2015 Total Elimination Design Build Manage
Media &  

Entertainment

285,269 0 198,778 60,074 6,323 20,094

Intersegment revenue 0 – 1,990 1 564 7 1,418

Total revenue 285,269 – 1,990 198,779 60,638 6,330 21,512

EBITDA 69,486  49,452 10,444 1,348 8,242

Amortization / depreciation – 16,781  – 7,452 – 8,954 – 45 – 330

Segment operating result (EBIT) 52,705  42,000 1,490 1,303 7,912

Interest income 178      

– 705      

Share of results of associated companies 970      

1,035      

– 16,401      

37,782      

 

2014 Total Elimination Design Build Manage
Media &  

Entertainment

218,451 0 175,104 20,090 5,298 17,959

Intersegment revenue 0 – 1,570 1 422 7 1,140

Total revenue 218,451 – 1,570 175,105 20,512 5,305 19,099

EBITDA 56,793  43,809 4,128 1,089 7,767

Amortization / depreciation – 10,288  – 7,837 – 2,154 – 52 – 244

Segment operating result (EBIT) 46,505  35,972 1,974 1,037 7,523

Interest income 152      

– 224      

Share of results of associated companies – 42      

169      

– 13,102      

33,458      
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2015 Total Design Build Manage
Media &  

Entertainment

29,611 20,178 6,963 1,057 1,413

Inventories 530 469 7 0 54

Other assets  7,734 6,398 1,175 12 149

249,502 66,843 176,725 2,111 3,823

7,664 4,145 3,077 49 393

thereof additions due to business combinations 57,697 4,881 52,816 0 0

Segment assets 287,378 93,888 184,870 3,180 5,439

Cash and cash equivalents 83,966

Investments in associates and long-term  
available-for-sale assets 1,863

Non-allocated assets* 6,324

Total assets 379,531

Liabilities 34,595 11,918 21,736 335 606

Provisions and accrued liabilities 25,619 17,417 6,383 426 1,393

Pensions and related obligations 1,744 414 0 0 1,330

Deferred revenue 41,996 31,502 7,326 41 3,127

Segment liabilities 103,954 61,251 35,445 802 6,456

Non-allocated liabilities** 108,659

Total liabilities 212,613

 

SEGMENT REPORTING – GEGRAPHICAL REGION

Revenues 2015 Fixed assets 2015 assets 2015 Revenues 2014 assets 2014

Germany 95,782 24,611 1,766 86,957 23,201 2,113

Abroad 189,487 224,891 5,898 131,494 167,654 2,086

Total 285,269 249,502 7,664 218,451 190,855 4,199
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2014 Total Design Build Manage
Media &  

Entertainment

28,869 22,039 4,458 600 1,772

Inventories 725 660 6 0 59

Other assets  6,955 6,114 706 32 103

190,855 66,151 118,823 2,110 3,770

4,199 3,189 342 49 618

thereof additions due to business combinations 100,534 0 100,534 0 0

Segment assets 227,404 94,964 123,993 2,742 5,704

Cash and cash equivalents 56,968     

Investments in associates and long-term  
available-for-sale assets 892     

Non-allocated assets* 6,423     

Total assets 291,687     

Liabilities 19,802 11,964 6,986 217 635

Provisions and accrued liabilities 21,107 15,900 3,898 299 1,010

Pensions and related obligations 1,667 456 0 0 1,211

Deferred revenue 32,386 26,200 3,373 52 2,761

Segment liabilities 74,961 54,520 14,257 568 5,617

Non-allocated liabilities** 80,149     

Total liabilities 155,110     

 

 

 

 

 

 

7

8

disclosures
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REMUNERATION OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

2015 Variable components 2015

Kurt Dobitsch 30.0 141.5 171.5

Prof. Georg Nemetschek 22.5 141.5 164.0

Rüdiger Herzog 15.0 141.5 156.5

Total 67.5 424.5 492.0

2014 Variable components 2014

Kurt Dobitsch 30.0 118.5 148.5

Prof. Georg Nemetschek 22.5 118.5 141.0

Rüdiger Herzog 15.0 118.5 133.5

Total 67.5 355.5 423.0
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EXECUTIVE BOARD REMUNERATION – VALUE OF THE AMOUNTS GRANTED

Patrik Heider Sean Flaherty

 
 since March 1, 2014

 

2014 
Initial Value 

2015 
Initial 
Value 

2015 
 

Mini- 
mum

2015 
 

Maxi- 
mum 

2014 
Initial Value 

2015 
Initial 
Value 

2015 
 

Mini- 
mum

2015 
 

Maxi- 
mum 

167 200 200 200 96 96 96 96

15 20 20 20 0 0 0 0

Total 182 220 220 220 96 96 96 96

One-year variable  
compensation 318 360 0 360 0 0 0 0

Multi-year variable 
compensation

 
2014 – 2016 92 161 0 249 92 161 0 249

  
2015 – 2017 – 183 0 389 – 183 0 389

Total 592 924 220 1.218 188 440 96 734

Viktor Várkonyi Dr. Tobias Wagner

 From August 29, 2013 
until March 31, 2014

2014 
Initial Value 

2015 
Initial 
Value 

2015 
 

Mini- 
mum

2015 
 

Maxi- 
mum 

2014 
Initial Value 

2015 
Initial 
Value 

2015 
 

Mini- 
mum

2015 
 

Maxi- 
mum 

96 96 96 96 67 – – – 

0 0 0 0 2 – – – 

Total 96 96 96 96 69 – – – 

One-year variable  
compensation 0 0 0 0 60 – – – 

Multi-year variable 
compensation

 
2014 – 2016 92 161 0 249 – – – – 

  
2015 – 2017 – 183 0 389 – – – – 

Total 188 440 96 734 129 – – – 
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EXECUTIVE BOARD REMUNERATION – CASH FLOW VIEW

Patrik Heider Sean Flaherty

 
 since March 1, 2014

2015  
Initial Value 

2014  
Initial Value 

2015  
Initial Value 

2014  
Initial Value 

200 167 96 96 

20 15 0 0 

Total 220 182 96 96

One-year variable compensation 360 318 0 0 

Multi-year variable  
compensation

 
2014 – 2016 0 0 0 0 

 
2015 – 2017 0 0 0 0 

Total 580 500 96 96

Total

One-year variable compensation

Multi-year variable  
compensation

 
2014 – 2016

 
2015 – 2017

Total

Viktor Várkonyi Dr. Tobias Wagner

From August 29, 2013 
until March 31, 2014

2015  
Initial Value 

2014  
Initial Value

2015  
Initial Value 

2014  
Initial Value

96 96 0 67 

0 0 0 2 

96 96 0 69

0 0 0 60 

0 0 – – 

0 0 – – 

96 96 0 129
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NOTES

 

:

AUDITORS‘ FEES 

[

 
2015 2014

Financial statements audit services 279 252

93 226

Other services 0 11

Total 372 488

[3
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“DDS takes pride in meeting the expectations 

and trust our clients put in us. We achieve this by 

continuously delivering high-quality products and 

services, supporting and driving forward their 

everyday business.”

Bjørn K. Stangeland, Data Design System

Segment:

Design

Company size:

87 employees

Locations:

Stavanger, Ascheberg, Leonding, Utrecht 

Solutions:

DDS-CAD MEP
DDS-CAD Architecture & Construction
DDS-CAD Viewer

Intelligent MEP Design
Data Design System (DDS) has developed innovative 
BIM solutions serving the building and construction 
industry since 1984. With more than 14.000 users 
worldwide, DDS is one of Europe‘s leading BIM soft-

lines. DDS-CAD MEP (Mechanical, Electrical, Plum-
bing) is a BIM authoring tool for MEP engineering with 
integrated calculations and interdisciplinary coordi-

& Construction, which is highly specialized to handle 
typical Scandinavian style residential units. Data 
Design System‘s solutions support open standards, 

head quarters in Stavanger, Norway and has a strong 
commitment to innovation, Open BIM and value for 
money. High standards of development and customer 
care are maintained by substantial investments in R&D 
and product support each year.

www.dds-cad.com
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SUPERVISORY BOARD

Mr Kurt Dobitsch  

(  

Chairman 

| ||

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

| ||

 

 

| || Bechtle AG, Gaildorf

| || Singhammer IT Consulting AG, Munich

Prof. Georg Nemetschek  

 

Mr Rüdiger Herzog  

| ||

| ||

[3

Disclosures of the
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Patrik Heider Sean Flaherty

EXECUTIVE BOARD

Mr Patrik Heider 

 

 

 

| ||

| ||

| ||

| ||  ay

Mr Viktor Várkonyi 

 

 

| ||   Hungary

| ||   Data Design System AS,  

| ||  

 

Mr Sean Flaherty 

 

 

 

 

| ||

| ||
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2015

Development of historic costs

As of  
Jan. 1, 2015

Currency  
translation

Additions from 
business  

combinations Additions Disposal
As of  

Dec. 31, 2015

I. Intangible assets

Software, industrial  
and similar rights 121,860 5,586 38,950 975 2,292 165,079

Internally generated software 7,489 0 0 0 0 7,489

Goodwill 111,285 5,700 18,627 34 697 134,949

240,634 11,286 57,577 1,009 2,989 307,517

II. Property, plant and
equipment

Other equipment, furniture  
26,749 1,336 120 6,655 2,380 32,480

26,749 1,336 120 6,655 2,380 32,480

 
of the group 267,383 12,622 57,697 7,664 5,369 339,997

2014

Development of historic costs

As of  
Jan. 1, 2014

Currency  
translation

Additions from 
business  

combinations Additions Disposal
As of  

Dec. 31, 2014

I. Intangible assets

Software, industrial  
and similar rights 80,297 555 41,057 1,016 1,065 121,860

Internally generated software 6,396 0 1,392 0 299 7,489

Goodwill 60,112 – 1,572 52,093 652 0 111,285

146,805 – 1,017 94,542 1,668 1,364 240,633

II. Property, plant
and equipment

Other equipment, furniture  
18,348 873 5,991 2,531 994 26,749

18,348 873 5,991 2,531 994 26,749

 
of the group 165,153 – 144 100,533 4,199 2,358 267,382

STATEMENT OF FIXED ASSETS OF THE GROUP



207

NOTES

Development of accumulated depreciation / amortization

As of  
Jan. 1, 2015

 
differences

Additions from 
business  

combinations Additions Equity method Disposal
As of  

Dec. 31, 2015

       

58,035 636 4 11,589 0 2,192 68,072

2,543 0 0 1,192 0 0 3,735

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

60,578 636 4 12,781 0 2,192 71,807

       

15,949 557 0 4,000 0 1,818 18,688

15,949 557 0 4,000 0 1,818 18,688

76,527 1,193 4 16,781 0 4,010 90,495

Development of accumulated depreciation / amortization

As of  
Jan. 1, 2014

 
differences

Additions  
from business 
combinations Additions Equity method Disposal

As of  
Dec. 31, 2014

       

54,339 – 2,184 13 6,602 0 735 58,035

1,405 0 170 1,267 0 299 2,543

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

55,744 – 2,184 183 7,869 0 1,034 60,578

       

13,016 325 956 2,419 0 767 15,949

13,016 325 956 2,419 0 767 15,949

68,760 – 1,859 1,139 10,288 0 1,801 76,527

Carrying amount

As of  
Dec. 31, 2015

As of  
Dec. 31, 2014

  

97,007 63,825

3,754 4,946

134,949 111,285

235,710 180,056

  

13,792 10,800

13,792 10,800

249,502 190,856

Carrying amount

As of  
Dec. 31, 2014

As of  
Dec. 31, 2013

  

63,824 25,957

4,946 4,991

111,285 60,112

180,055 91,060

  

10,800 5,332

10,800 5,332

190,855 190,855 
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DECLARATION OF THE LEGAL REPRESENTATIVES
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DECLARATION OF THE LEGAL REPRESENTATIVES / AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Eberspächer Werk 2020, Wilsdruff, Germany

Designer: Statix3, Neu-Ulm

“As a result of a decades-long focus on 

precast concrete element design, our 

software solutions have a level of design 

integration which is un paralleled on the 

market.  Interoperability is a further focus. 

formats dominate, we want to accelerate 

the concept of Open BIM by means of 

open data exchange with other modeling 

tools.” 

Werner Maresch, Precast Software Engineering

Segments:

Design, Build 

Company size:

29 employees

Locations:

Salzburg, Shanghai, Singapore

Solutions:

Planbar
TIM

Awards and References:

China Mingsheng Zhuyou Ltd, Concrete Rudolph, 
fdU, Lehner, LSR Group, Oberndorfer, Pruksa

Software and Service for the Pre-
cast Concrete Element Industry
Precast Software Engineering, with Planbar and 
TIM, is a leading provider of software solutions to the 
precast concrete element industry. Highly automa-
ted precast element plants require design solutions 
that meet the requirements of the precast concrete 
element market in terms of quality, productivity, cost-

results using the combination of Planbar, with com-
prehensive functions ranging from series production 
to complex architectural elements, and TIM, the 
Technical Information Manager, which serves as an 
information tool to network projects and their structure 
and status. Precast Software Engineering, headquar-
tered in Salzburg, was founded in 2005 and is a 100% 
part of the Nemetschek Group.

www.precast-software.com
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ASSETS in € Dec. 31, 2015 Dec. 31, 2014

A. FIXED ASSETS

I. Intangible Assets

Purchased franchises, industrial rights and similar rights and  
assets and licenses in such rights and assets 19,525.89 7,881.75

II. Property, plant and equipment

1. Leasehold improvements 13,712.70 5,470.84

51,182.41 27,937.00

64,895.11 33,407.84

III. Financial assets

237,300,265.46 207,178,347.16

36,761,755.81 36,643,786.81

3. Investments 2,025,303.93 2,025,303.93

276,087,325.20 245,847,437.90

TOTAL FIXED ASSETS 276,171,746.20 245,888,727.49

B. CURRENT ASSETS

I. Accounts receivable and other assets

1. Accounts receivable from trading 20,385.61 3,286.78

14,231,228.49 1,198,530.13

–  thereof Accounts receivable from trading
EUR 322,382.18 (previous year: EUR 85,514.93)

3. Other assets 1,283,288.45 940,859.33

15,534,902.55 2,142,676.24

II. Cash and cash equivalents 14,719,120.07 3,217,720.91

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 30,254,022.62 5,360,397.15

C. DEFERRED AND PREPAID EXPENSES 96,672.10 106,561.62

D. DEFERRED TAX ASSET 66,678.62 142,131.56

306,589,119.54 251,497,817.82

BALANCE SHEET

as of December 31, 2015, and as of December 31, 2014

Financial Statement
OF NEMETSCHEK AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT  
(GERMAN COMMERCIAL CODE)
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BALANCE SHEET

EQUITY & LIABILITIES in € Dec. 31, 2015 Dec. 31, 2014

A. EQUITY   

I. Subscribed capital 38,500,000.00 9,625,000.00

II. Capital reserve 20,529,856.90 49,404,856.90

III. Revenue reserve 28,585,721.39 28,585,721.39

IV. Retained earnings 102,701,483.10 85,092,477.55

TOTAL EQUITY 190,317,061.39 172,708,055.84

B. PROVISIONS AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES   

1. Accrued tax liabilities 1,404,558.70 2,586,516.66

2. Other provisions and accrued liabilities 3,202,313.95 1,961,660.94

TOTAL PROVISIONS AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 4,606,872.65 4,548,177.60

C. LIABILITIES   

1. Liabilities due to banks 80,000,000.00 60,000,000.00

2. Trade accounts payable 496,271.35 228,567.20

29,264,397.92 12,093,583.70

4.  Other liabilities  
– thereof taxes: EUR 981,488.27 (previous year: EUR 924,928.16) 
–  thereof social security EUR 3,867.43 (previous year: EUR 2,320.78) 1,003,372.81 937,908.89

TOTAL LIABILITIES 110,764,042.08 73,260,059.79

D. DEFERRED TAX LIABITLITY 901,143.42 981,524.59

 
306,589,119.54 251,497,817.82
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in € Jan. 1 – Dec. 31, 2015 Jan. 1 – Dec. 31, 2014

1. Revenues 595,417.64 1,168,783.46

2. Other operating income 774,117.97 2,689,072.48

Operating Income 1,369,535.61 3,857,855.94

3. Personnel expenses

a) Wages and salaries – 3,574,877.36 – 2,235,712.37

 
– thereof for pension: EUR 4.480,24 (previous year: EUR 2,907.41) – 315,394.86 – 214,967.42

4.  Depreciation and amortization of intangible assets,
property, plants and equipment – 36,602.15 – 225,204.79

5. Other operating expenses – 5,558,760.08 – 4,754,540.31

Operating expenses – 9,485,634.45 – 7,430,424.89

Operating results – 8,116,098.84 – 3,572,568.95

6.  Income from investments

EUR 27,740,679.84 (previous year: EUR 26,300,919.84) 27,740,679.84 26,300,919.84

16,541,626.44 14,548,574.28

8.  Other interest and similar income

EUR 1,170,500.57 (previous year: EUR 392,152.66) 1,198,416.58 399,284.74

9.  Interest and similar expenses

EUR 185.63 (previous year: EUR 35,691.49) – 618,720.89 – 157,393.09

36,745,903.13 37,518,816.82

11.  Taxes on income
– thereof expenses of recognized from the change in deferred taxes:
EUR 4,928.23 (previous year: EUR 433,902.90) – 3,736,897.58 – 2,972,962.22

12. Net income 33,009,005.55 34,545,854.60

69,692,477.55 50,546,622.95

14. Retained earnings 102,701,483.10 85,092,477.55

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNTOF  
NEMETSCHEK AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT (GERMAN COMMERCIAL CODE)

for the period from January 1 to December 31, 2015 and 2014
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
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Financial calendar 2016

March 31, 2016

July 29, 2016

April 29, 2016

October 28, 2016

May 20, 2016

November
21 – 23, 2016

Publication

Annual Report 2015

Publication

Quarterly Statement

2nd Quarter 2016

Publication

Quarterly Statement

1st Quarter 2016 

Publication

Quarterly Statement

3rd Quarter 2016

Annual General Meeting,

Munich

German Equity Forum,

Frankfurt am Main
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